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@ THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED |

| NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 39t Annual Genera! Meeting of THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LMITED will be held st GYAN
MANCH, 11, Pretoria Sireet. Kolkaia-T00071 on Friday 22nd July, 2016 at 11.30 ALM. 1o transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

. Torecene, consider snd adopt the Audited Accounts and Report of the Directors and the Auditors of the Company for the year
ended 315t March, 2016,

2. Todeclare Dividend for the year 2015-2016

3. Toappoint Director in place of Mrs. Divya Jalan (DN 00016102), whe retines by rotation and being eligible offers herself for re-
appaintmen|

4, Tore-appoiniment of Auditor Messrs. Singhi & Co., Chanered Accouniants, and fo fix their remuneration,
*Resolved that re-appointment of Messrs. Singhi & Company, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Mo J02044E) be and

is hereby re-appointed as Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of this meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting al remuneration as may be decided by fhe Board of Directors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
Item No. 5

To consider, and it thought fit to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution for
Regulanzation of Additiona! Directar |

“RESOLVED THAT pursuanl fo 169 & 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable provision | including any
modification or re-enactment thereof ), if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sandeep Kumar Jalan |DIN- 00015836) who
was appointed a5 an Additional Directorin the mesting of the Board of Directors held on July 27, 2015 and whose term axpires
al the ensuring Annual General Meeting of the Company and for the appointment of whom the Company has received a notice
in wriling proposing his candidature for the office of the directer be and is hereby appointed as director of the Company.”

[tem Mo. &

To consider, and If Inought fil to pass, with or without modification, the foliowing resclulion as an Ordinary Resolution for
Regulanzation of Additonal Director

'‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to 160 & 161 of the Companies Act 2012 and any olher applicatie provision | including any
modification or re-enaciment thereef |, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Alok Krishna Agarwal (DIN- 00127273) who was
appointed as an Additional Directer in the meeting of the Board of Directors held on July 27, 2015 and whose term expires at
the ensuring Annual General Mesting of the Company and for the appointment of whom the Company has received anotice in
wriling propasing his candidalura for the office of the director be and is hereby appointed as director of the Company”
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Iterm No. T
Cansider and, if thought fit, o pass, with or without modification, the fellowing resciution as an Orainary Resciution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant 1o Section 136, 157 and other apphcable provision (T any, of Ihe Companies Act 2013, read with
szction 188 and Scheduie V of the said Act, and in accordance with Aricle 80 of the Aricle of Association of the Company and
an the recomimendalions by Momination 2nd Remaneration Committes, approva of he Board be and is hershy granted fo the
re-appointment of Mr. Sankar Kumar Basu Sarbachikary, as Whale-lime Director of the Company, not liable to zefire by retation,
designated a5 Director-Finiancs for & fusther pariod of 1 tone) year with effect from 15t April, 2016 subject to the approval of
shareholders in general mesling'

By order of the Board
Registered Office:
1, Crooked Lane, (Dhirendra Kumar)
Kolkata - 700 069 Diracior
The 14* day of May, 2016. Din: 00153773
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& member enfitled lo atiend and vote is entitled to appoint & prozy o'attend and vete, instead of himfher A proxy need
nct be s member of the Company. n order to be effective, the instrument appointing proxy must reach the Regisiered
Office of the Company rot less ihan forty-sight hotrs before the commencemant of the meeting. A person can act a5
prosy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of he Paid
up Capital of the Company cammying voting rights: A member halding more than ten percent of the Paid up Capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint & single parson as proxy-and such persan shall not act as proxy for any
other person or shareholder

Mambers ars requested to notify to the Regisirar of the Company, Mis. ABS CONSULTANT BVT. LTD., Stephen House,
Ath Floor, Reom Mo 85, 4, B.B.D. Bag (East). Kolkata — 700 (01, any change in their address:

The Register of Members and Eqully Share Transfer Registers will remain closad from 16th July, 2016 to 22nd July,
2016 (both days inclusive).

Voting ﬂvuugh electronic means

Pursuant tothe provisions of Section 108 ¢f the Companies Act, 2013 read wilh Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Adminisiration) Rules, 2014 a8 amended and clause 358 of the Listing Agreement, Members are provided with the

“faciiities 1o cast heir votes on 2ll resolutions set forth in the Notica of ine AGM using electronic voting system provided

by Central Depository Services {Indla) Ltd. (CDSL).

Tha notice of the 3%thAnnual General Meeting (AGM) of the Campany inter alia indicating the process and manner of
eVoling process slong with prinfed Altendance Siip and Proky Form is being dispatched to ali the Members, The e-
Vating particulars are provided &1 the boltom of the Attendance Slip for the 39thAnnual General Meeting (AGM]:

The e-woling period beging an 18.07.2018 from 8.00 AWM. and ends on 21.07. 2016 il 500 PM. Dunng this peniog,

‘shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical formor in dematerizlized form, as on the cut-offf
-entitlement date of 15.07.2018:may casi thesr vote elecronically. The e-voing module shall be-disabled by CDSL for

voting theresafter

Members also have the oplion 1o vote through Badlol Form. However, the duly completed Ballot Form should reach the
Scrufinizer at 9, Crooked Lane, 3rd Fioor, Room No 18, Kolkats — 700 069, not later than 21.07. 2006 (5.00FM.) (he
closing date of E-Voting) Ballot form received after this date wil be treated as Invalid. . if member casts voles by both
modes, then voting done througn E-voting shall prevail and Ballot Farm shall be treated as invalid.

The Instructions for E-Voting are as under:
3 Logonto the e-voting website: www evolingindia.com during ihe voting period.
b) Chidkon *Sharehiolders’ 1ab

g)  Now, select Electronic Voling Sequence Mo, as mentioned In the Altendance Shp alongwith “THE SCOTTISH
ASSAM (INDLA) LIMITED™ from the drop down meru and click on “SUBMIT

d]  Now Enter your UseriD |as mentioned in the Atiendance Slip) :
i, FerGOSL 16 digits beneficiary 1D,
il For NSOL. 8 Charatter OF iD followed by & Digits Client 1D,
il Members holding shiares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered wilh the Company,

g} Maxtenter the Image Verification as disptayed and Click on Login

)yl arg holding shares in Demat form and had iogged'on towww.evatingindia com and voted o an earlier voting

of any compary, then your existing passwnfd'is fabe used.

&)
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However, i you ane 2 first time user, plesse use the e-Voling particular provided in (he Attendancs Slip and fill up
the same in the appropriate boxes:

Aser entenng these delails appropriately, click on "SU EMIT" tab.

Marmbars holding shares in physical form will then reach: directly the Company selection screen; However, members
holding shiares in demat form will now reach “Fassword Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily
enler their login passward in the new password figld,

Hindly note that this password 15 1o be also used tw the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are eligible o vole, provided that company apts fore-voling through CDSL plathorm. Itis
strongly recommendad not to share your password wilh any other person and take utmost care o keep your
password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details In Attendance Slip can be used only for e-vofing on Ihe
resolutions contained in $his Notice.

Click on the relevant EVSN “THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED™ for which you chocse 1o vole:

{in the voling page, you wili ses "Resolution Description” and agains! the same the option *YESING" for voting,
Select the option YES or NO a5 desired. The option YES implies that you assent 1 the Resglution and opfion NO
implies ihat you dissent to the Resolution;

Click on the “Resoiutions File Link” if you wish 1o view the entire Resolutions

Afler selecting the resolution yau have decided to vote on, clickon "SUBMIT”, A confirmation box will be displayed.
i you wish to confim your vote, chick on "0K”, else to change your vole, click on SCANCEL and secordingly modify
your vote.

Once you “CONFIRAT your vote on the resciution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking oa *Click here to print® option on the Voling page.

1§ Demiat sccount hilder hias forgotten the changed password then enter the User \D and image verfication code
click on Forgot Password & enter the delails as prompted by the sysiem.

For Non = Indlvidual Shareholders and Custodians:

«  MonIndividual shareholders (i g other than Individuals, HUF, NRiete ) and Custodians ars requirad fo log on
io hitps:/iwww.evotingindia.com and register themseives as Corporaies.

« A scanned copy of the Regisiration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be e-mailed 1o
hel k. gvgtin slindia.com.

«  After reteiving the login detalls a Compliance User should B8 created using the admin login and passward.
The Compliance Lser would be sble to fink the account{s) for which they wish to vote on.

+  Thelistof accounts linked in the login should be Malked to helpdesk evoting@edslindia.com and on-approval
of the accounts they wouid te able to cas! their vote,

+  Ascanned copy of the Board Resalution and Power of Attomey (FOA | which they havelssusd infavour of the
Custodian, if-any, should be upleaded in POF format in the system for the sorulinizer 1o verify the same:

Ini caise you Have sy quenes o issues fegarding e-veling, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FADS")
and e-voling manual -available at www evolingindia com undef halp section or write an email 10
helpdesk evolingi@cdslndia.com,

‘G the vote on a resciution is cast by the shareholder by electronic means, the shareholder shall not be ellowed

1o change it subsequentiy or cast his voie by any olher means

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become Member of the Company afler dispatch of
the Notice and holding shares as on the cutoff date of i.e. 16.07.2016, may contact the Company for Login
10 and other e-voting related detalls.

(@
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The voting rights of sharehaiders shali bein proportion of their shares of the paid up aquity share capital of the Company
&5 on the cut-offlentitlement date of 16.07.2016.

Mr. Pravin Kumar Drofia, Practicing Company Sectetary, (Membership No.2368) of Drolia & Co. has been appointed a3
the Scrufinizer o strulinize the e-voling process in a far end ranspanent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall within 2 period no! exceading 48 hours (Zjworking days Irom the conclusion of E voling unbliock the
votes ini the presence of at least two (2] witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make a Seratinizer's
Report of the voes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chaitman of the Company.

The Results shall be declared afler the 38th Annual General Meeting |AGM! of the Company. This Natice 23 well a5 (he
Razults seciared alongwith the Scrutinizer's Report shall be communicated o COSL and The Calcutta Stock Exchange
Limited within:24.07 2014

Tne dividens, as recommended by the Board, f zanciones af the mesting, will 0e paid on or after 09.08.2016 to thoss
membars of the Company helding shares in physical farm whose name appear on e Register of Mambers 2= at the
end of 15.07.2016,; m rezpact of shares hizld in electronic form, the dividend will be paid o the benaficial owners af the
shiares as al the end of 15.07.2016, as per details provided by the Depasitors for this purpose,

Mambers desirous of getiing any information on sccoust of operations of the Company is requested to forward his
queries to the Company's Registered Office at least seven days prior 1o the Meeting 30 that the required information
can be made gvailshis st the Meating,

Members are hereby informed that Dividends which remain unpaid or unclaimed over a period of 7 yasre have 1o be
iransferred by the Company to Investor Education & Protection Fund {|EFF) constituted by the Central Governiment
under Section 2054 of the Companies Act, 1856 (124 & 125 of the Companies Act, 2013} and no claim shali lie for the
unclaimed dividend from IEPF or from the Company by 1he Sharehiolders, Accordingly unclaimed Equity Dividend for the
Timancial year 2007-2008 has been transferred 1o such Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). The due dales
of transfer of the following dividends o the Fund are as unoer;

Dividends Date of declaration Due date of
for the year of dividend transfer to the Fund
2008-2008 DA0E 2009 10,2046
2009-2010 13.08.2010 20102017
2010-2011 29.08.20Mm 05:11.2018
2011-2012 07.09. 2012 ' 14.10.2018
2012413 072013 07 .09:2020
20132014 22082014 {5.10:2021
2018-X15 21072015 03.09.2022

Pursuant 1o the provisions of Investor Education and Protection Fund {Uploading of information regarding unpaid and
unclalmed amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012 the Company nas uploadad the delzls of eipaid and unclzimed
dividend lying with the Company as an e date of Finalisation of Notice for the General Mesting of the shiareholders an
the website of the Company [www.scottishassam com) and cn the website of the Ministry of Corporate &ffaers,

&
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ttarm No. &

The Board, a1 its meeting held on July 27, 2015 appointed Mr. Sandesp Kumar Jaian as an additional disector of the Company
with effect from July 27, 2015, pursuani to ssution 161 of the Compsanies Act, 2013, Hence he will hiold office up o the dateof
the ensunng Annual General Mesting

Uinder section 160-of Compenies Act 2013, a notice in writing hias been received from Mis Ninan Commercia Company
Limiled proposing Mr. Sandesp Kumar Jalan for direciorship of the Company along with & deposit of Rs. 1 Lack- each as
required urder Ihe aloresaid section.

The Company has received the following from Mr. Sandeep Kumar Jalan :

(i} Comsentinwriting o actas Diredtor in form DIR-2 pursuant ta Rule 8 of the Compenies {Appointment and Qualifications
of Direclars) Rules, 2014,

(i) Intimation In Form DIR-8 in terms of Companies {Appainiment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 1o the effect
that hie is not disquaiifisd under sub- section (2) of section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Board considers that his association would be of immense beneiit to the Company and it is desirable fo avall Ihelr sendces
s Directors,

ltem No. 6

The Board, at ite mesting held on July 27 2015 appainted Mr. Alok Krishna Agarwal 25 an addifional director of the Company
witheflect from July 27, 2015 pursuant to section 151 of the Campanies Act, 2073, Hence he will hold office up io the date of
the-ensuring Annual General Mesting.

Under section 160 of Companies Act 2013, & nolice ir writing from Mz SPBP Investments Private Limited propasing Mr. Alok
Krishna Agarwal for directorship of the Campany along with a deposit of Re. 1 Lacs each as required under the aforesaid
saciion

The Company has received the following from Mr. Alok Krishna Agarwal :

{ii  Consentin wnfing to act as Direcior in form DIR-Z pursuant to Rule & of the Compenies {Appointment and Cualifications
of Directors) Rules, 2014

il Intimation in Form DIR-&in terms of Companies {Appointment and Qualifications of Directors; Rules, 2014 fothe efect
that they s not disqualified under sub- section | 2; of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Board considers that their association would be of immense benefit 1o the Company and It 15 desirable to avall their
servicas as Directors,

Accordingly, thie Board recommends the resalution Nos. 5 & 6 in relation o appointment of Mr Sandesp ¥umai Jalan and Wr
Alok Krishna Agarwal as Directors, respectively. for the approval by the sharehoiders of the Company. All dogumentz conceming
{hese flems are avallabie forinspection at the Registerad Office of tha Comgany from 11 AM. fo 1 FM. on all working deys il
ibe date of the forlhcoming Annuzl Genaral Meeting of sharghatdars

Excent Mr, Sandesp Kumar Jalan in case of resciulion no.5 and Mr. Alok Krighna Agarwal in case of resolution no.B, none of
the Directors of the Company is Inany way concernad or interested in the resolution

ltem No. T

Byrsuant te the recommiendation of the Nomination and Hemineration Commities the Board of Directors of the Company vid
rasolution passed an fth Fabruary, 2016 approved appaintment of Mr. Sankar Kumar Basu Sarbadhikary, Director— Finance,
gesignated as Whole-lime Directer of the Company in acoardance wilh the provisions conlained in Section 186 and 187 read

* with Section 202 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that Mr Sarkar Kumar Basu Sarbachikary shall hold office for 1 (ong) year
{tilt the Board! committes deride for resppointment) and shall be efigible for election subject io the approvat of the shareholders
at this Annue! Genersl meeting.

&



Aparova of the members is required by way of Ordinary Resolution for appointment and payment of remuneralion.

This explanaioty slatemant may aiso be read and Iraated s disclosursin compliancs with the requirements of Section 130 of
the Companies Act, 2013

The remuneration payable lo Mr Sankar Kumar Basu Sarbadhikary are within the limits and the lemms and conditions of the
appointment s given Gekow.

Terms and conditions and the remuneration as detailed below:

a)

b}

&

Salary: The amount of basic salaty payable to him during e pariad from tal Apil 2016 to 315t March 2017, will be
decided by the Board with afurther authority to the Board to revise the monihly basic salary upio s maximurn of Rs.
40,0000 Rupses iy thousand only} per month during the remaining penicd of his fenurs.

Perquisites: In addiion to above remuneration Mr Sarikar Kumar Basu Sarbadnikary shatl also be entitied to Gratuity,
and other peiguisites up to the amaunt with a ceifing of Rs: 1,00,0000-ger year. Howevar, this is subjact lo-approval of
Sard of Directors. Ma will siso be eniitled to one monin's paid lsave per year. However. he can-encash the leave, if not
avaitad

Other Condition: Wi, Sankar Kuma Bast Sarbadhixary shall be subject tothe supermiendance, conirol and oiher directions
of the Board and or Commities of the Directors to-perform such dutles and exercise such Dowers which have been or may

$am firmie 1o me be entrusted of vested on him Dy the Board:and or Committes. The agreement of appointment will aiso sel
oul the mutist rights and obligation of the concemed parties and Glher administrative details. The appointment and

ramuneraton of Mr Sankar Kumar Basu Sarbadnikary as Whote-time Diractor requires the approval of the members of the

Company in General Meeling as per section 196, 197 read wilh Schedule V of Companiss Act, 2013,

Information interms of Schedule V to the Companles Act, 2013 for seeking approval of the shareholders are given here below :

l. GENERAL INFORMATION

| 1. Maties of industry | Cubvation of Tea and manufaclyring of Tea
| 2 Date of commencemnent of commercial produclion The Company is in manufacturing aperation sings 1577
3. \ncase of new companies, expecied date of Mot &pplicable

commancement of sctivities as per project
approved by fnancial institulion appearing
in e prospectus

Profit | {Loss) after Tax [PAT)

4, Financial perfarmance based oo givan [ndicator As per Audited Financial Results for the year ended -

Particulars 31.03.2016 H.03.2015

{Rs.in Lacs) | (Rs.in Lacs]

Revente from operations {Nat) 2840.99 3052 48
Profil | (Loss) before interest, depreciation & tax (PBIDTA) 340.78 28056
inberast (Met) 45.26 5793
Profit | {Loss) before Depraciation & Tax (PBLT) 295.52 22283
Deprecsaticn | Amortization {53.21) [53.46)
Profil  (Loss) before Tax (PBT) 24231 16817
Provision for Tax (54.47) (2482

187.84 144.25 |

5. Foreign Investment or collaboraters, ifany Mot Applicabie

@



I, INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEES!
Mr. Sankar Kumar Basu Sarbadhikary

1.

Background details

M Sankar Kumar Basu Sarbadhixary aged about T8 years, holds a Bachelor cegree in Commerce along with LLE,
(st Accountant, Computer Programming from Regional Computer centre {Javadpur), Diploma in Management (IIM
Ranchi). The Board in its mesting held on 15th December, 2000 appointed Mr. Sankar Kumar Basu Sarbadnikary &5
Director - Finance designated as Whole-ime Director of the Company.

t  Pastremuneration:
Ramuneration paid dunng last 3 years
23134 T 516,000/
201415 7 5.46,000!-
Patif T 6,12,000/-
3 Job profile and suitability:
M1 Sankar Kumas Basu Sarbadhikary is entrusted with the powers and authorilies o manage the affzirs of the Company
ot & day to day biasis subject to supenniencence, direckon and control of ne Board of Directors, He has an exiensive
knowladge of tea industry. His sxperience al vanous ieveis nas nelped him to successfully manage the affalrs of the
Company fof last several years.
4,  Remuneration Proposed :
The proposed remuneration i within the imit et ol urider Section 196, 197 203 read with Schedule V of the Companies
Ack, 2043
5 Comparative remuneration profile with respect to Industry, size of the Company; profile of the Position and
person ;
Remunsration of Chief Executive Officers in the industry in general has gone up manifold in past few years. |1 is not
passible to fird cut comparative remuneration in the Industry with respect to profite of the position with respect to
activities of the Company in tea, The semunaration to Mr. Sankar Kumar Basu Sarhadhikary is purely based on merits,
§.  Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company relationship with the managerial personnel;
Mr. Sankar Kumar Basu Sarbadhikary has no pecuniary relationship with the Company other than fis remuneralion as
Whoee Time Director,
By order of the Board
Registered Office:
1, Crooked Lane, {Dhirendra kumar}
Kolkata - T00 069 CHrector
The 14" day of May, 2016, D 00453773
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| REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

For the firanzial year ended 313l March, 2046

Diar Sharsholoers,
We present the 38th Annual Repon of ine Company together with the tudited Btatements of Ascounts for he year ended st
March, 2018,

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE
For the year Far the year
Particulars Ended Ended
3.03.2016 31.03.2015
{7 in Lacs) ¥ in Lacs)
Profit from operation 148,77 162.06
Other Income 38.52 10912
Increasel| Decrease) in Stock 110.23 {48.55)
Profit before Depreciation & Taxation 295,52 22263
Less:  Dlepreciation for the year (53.21) (53 48)
EBrofitiLoss) before taxation 24231 _169_'."_
Less Provision for taxation - Income Tax-Cument Year {58.50) {22.50)
- Egriier year 0.32 18.78)
- Dterred Tay am 636
Profit|Loss) after Taxation 187.84 H
Add:  Beilance brought fonward from last yeat 157.M B3.41
Amount avaliable for appropriation 345.55 23366
The Directar recommeand disposal 85 follows: - =
Dividend on Equity Shares @ 35% (earlier year @30 %) 28.00 2400
: Tax {Icluding surcharge & ecucstion cess) 228 188
Tax(@20,367647% an proposad dividend (Last year @20, 3576470
Transfer o General Resetve 50.00 50.00
Balancs to be caried forward o next year 265.27 gLt o |
345.55 23386
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EQUITY DIVIDEND
The Board is cleased to recommend the distribution of dividend of T 3.5/- per share for the year endad 31st March, 2018,
TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company proposas to ransfer 7 50.00 lacs to General Reserve out of the amount available for appropriztions and an amount
of T 265.27 lacs is proposed 1o be retained in the Profitand Loss Account

PERFORMANCE

This year the tea industry has gone through 2 poor phase due io uneven rainfall and severe drought which resuited in the dramatic
tall in tes crops produced dunng the year. Our te3 estate was 2lso affected by ihis

O tea estate aireaty bracing for low production gwing o lack of rainfall during the first flush, has also been hit by pest attacks
during the year, Production from own leal was lowar durning the eurrent year wiich was partally recovered during the year through
bought lead,

The final production for the year was 16 54,295 kgs, (both own & bought ieaf) against previous year's figure of 16,96,370 kgs {both
own & bought leaf),

The average pfice fealization for the year was T 18550 per kg againstlast years T 180,96 par kg
PROSPECT

Prasent year thi rainfall is uneven from the staring of crop season of the year 2018, resuited the production slightly below average
This is in line with the conditions prevaiiing in the entire tea producing areas of Upper Assam.

in addition 10 the above phenomana, expendifure during the year has alse shot up, particularly in the area of wages of the workers
and food graing. The wage rise s uf to 22 per cent fram 01,01 2015 and again up 1o 10 per cent from 01,03 2016 the cumrant year,
Food grain prices @ revised dusto withoraws! of subsidy by govemnmen! from food graing and shol up the prices mare than doubls.
this cost per kg tea mads. This will have a big impact in the luture years aiso

Your directors are taking all possiole messures 1o control ihe situation.
CORPORATE GOYERMANCE

A5 per the Securifies and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirement) Requlations, 2045
{praviously Listing Agresment) introduced 2 urifarm code of corporate gavernanca by executing uniform agreement for 3ll types of
securities listed on siock exchange. This becomes oparational within the financial year ending March 21, 2018 Your Company has
executid the new uniform agresment with Calcutla Stock Exchange (CSE) as snares of your Company are lsted an CSE.

Regulation 17(7), 17{8] and Regulation 27 of new SEBI {Listing Obligation and Disciosure Requirement) Reguiations, 2015 [relates
o Clause 48 of oid Listing Agresment) is of Corporate Governarice which is applicable on companies whose paid up share capital
157 3 crore or above and Nat wonh is 2 25 crore or above. Sinca your company is having pald up share capital of © &0 Lakhs,
implementaticn and compliance of requrements as per SEBI (Listing Cbiigation and Disclosure Requirement) Reguiations, 2015
{as amanded Clause 45 of old Listing Agrezment) with Calcutta Stock Exchange. is not mandatory.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

A5 per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 a company whose Net Worth iz ¥ 500 crare or more of Tumowver T 1000 crore or mors
or Met orofit of T 5 crore or mere during any financial year shall have to abudz the rules of Corporate Social Responsitility. Since
your company doss not fl in the above mentioned category, hence your Company does nothave o foliow the rules of CSR

(10)



@ THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

vour Directors would like to inform members that the audited sccounis containing the financial statements for the year 2015-16 are
In confommity with the requirements of the Companies Act and they balieve that the financial statements reflect fairly tne form and
substance of transactions carmed out during the year and reasonably present the Company's financial condition and resuls of
operations. The Statutory Auditors. Messrs Singhi & Co., Chanered Accountants, Kalkata have audited these financial statements.

Based on the same, yaur Directors further confirm that according 1o their information;

i Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, spplicable accounting standards have been feliowed and there are no material
departures,

i The accounting poticies selected by direciors are consistently followed and appiied and judgements and estimates
made are reasonable and prudent so as te give & true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company

i Properand sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accourting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding this assats of the Company and for praveniing and deecting fraud and
other irragularities.

iy, Theannual accounts have been prepared on 2 going concem basis.

v That there is adequate proper intemal financial controls with reference to the financial statement have been laid down
tor the Company and such intemal financial coniro's are adequate and were operating effeciively.

vi.  Thatproper system has been devised lo ensure compliance wilh the provisions of all appiicable iaws and such systems
were adeguate and operating effectively

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The prescribed particulars of employees reguired under Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remungration of Managarial
Personnel} Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure-1 1o this report. The information as reguired under Saction 197{12) of the Companies
Aot 2013 reac with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personna!) Rules 2014
sie given inhe Annaxure — 1 forming part of the Repor.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has nelther accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

During the year Company mvested some of its surplus sarmings in Mutual Funds and is getting seasonable retums on its investments.
GOING CONCERN STATUS

to significant and material orders have been passed by thie Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status
of the Company and its aperation in the fulure.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

There are no confractsiamangementsitransactions entered by the Company during the financial year with relsled parties in the
crdinary course of busingss.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Iin today's economic environment, Risk Managemant is a very important pan of business. The main aim of risk managament is o
identify, monitor and take precautionary measures in respect of the events that may pose risks for the business. The Company has
|icl down the procedures to inform to the Board aboutthe sk assessment and minimization procedures, which shall be responsible
for framing, impiementing and monitaring the risk management plan of the Company



DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH REGARD TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY ETC.

Necessary information pursuant to sub-section {3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rula 8(3) of the Companias
(Accounts) Rutes, 2014 is presented in Annexure-2 fo this Report

ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY

The Company is conscious of clean environment and safe operaticns. |1 ensures satety of &l concemed, complisnce: with
environmental regulations and preservation of naturat resources,

Ag required by the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplacs (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013, the Compsny
has an imemal paticy on prevention of sexual harassment al workplace with a mechanism of lodging complaints: During the year
under review, no comptaints wens reperted 1o the Board,

COST AUDIT

The provisions of Section 148 of Companies Act, 2013 read with (Cost Records and Audit) Rulas, 2014; are not applicable on the
Company as your company does not fall in the eligibiity criterion of the same.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company continuad to engage reputed firms of Chartered Accountants as its intemal auditors at its Head Dffice and Tea
Estate. Their scope of work and the pian for audit is approved by the Audit Committes. The report submitied by them is regulary
reviewed and their findings are discussed with the process owners snd sultable corective action taken on an ongoing basis to
improve efficiency in operations.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Bursuant to the provislons of Secticn 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuriesation of
Managenial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Mr. Pravin kumar Drolia of Drolia & Co. Practicing Company
Secretaries iouncertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The report of the Secretarist Auditis annexed herewith as Annexure-
3 and forms part of the Diraciors’ Report. There s no qualification or reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the
Sacretarial Auditor inthe Repart.

INSURANCE

Adedugte insurance cover has beentaken for properiies of the Company Incluiﬁng puildings, plant ahd machineries and stocks
‘against fire, earthquake and other risks 35 considered necessary.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

As per provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Divya Jalan (DIN 00018102) is liable 1o retire by rotation in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being efigiole offer herzelf for reappaintment. The Board recammends her reappainiment,

Tha tenure of Mr. Sankar Kumar Besu Sarbadhikary, Director Finance designated as Whole-fime Director, is due fo expire on
345t March 2076, Looking fa the valuable contributions being made by him for development of the Company, the Board as par
recommendation af the Namination and Remuneration Commitiee has proposad o reappeint him as Whole-fme Director of the
Company for a further period upio 315t March 2047,

Approval of the members is sought for the sbove Resolution

The Board appointed Mr Sandeep Kumar Jaian {DiN 00015836) as an Additional Diregtor on 27th July, 2015 who shall hold office
upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has recaived a notice as per the provisions of Seclion 1801)
of the Campanies Act, 2013 from a member proposing s appaintment as a director. Based on the recommendation of Nomination
& Remuneration Committes, the Board desired that Mr. Sandeep Kumar Jalan having all round expenence in variaus fields be
appoinied as Dirsctor, A resolution has been inchuded in the Agenda of the ensuing Annual General Meeting af the Company.



Approval of the members |s sought for the said appoiniment,

The Board appointed Mr. Afok Krishina Aganwat (DIt 00127273) as an Additienal Director on 27th July, 2015 whe shalf hoid office
upta the dats of the ensuing Annual General Mesting. The Company has received a notice as per the provisions of Section 163{1)
of the CompaniesAct, 2013 from s member proposing his appointmenl as 2 direcior. Based an the recommendstion of Momination
& Remuneraiion Commitiee, the Board dessred that Me Alok Knsnna Agarwal having all round experience in vanous figlds be
appointed as an Independert Director, A resolution hiss been included in the Agenda of ine ensuing Annual Gensra Mesting of
the Company.

The Company has received declarations fram the Independent Dirsclor of the Company confitming Inat he meet the crileriz of
Independence as prescribed under the Companies Agt 2013.

The Board appointed Ms. Priyanka Sharma as Company Secretary and Compliance Cfficer as por raquiremeants of seclion 2 (24),
section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 read with rule B of The Companies {Appeintment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Hules, 2014 during the year,

The Baard has, on the recemmendation of the Nomination and Remunesation Committee, framed the policy for selection and
appointment of Directors, Senior Management Personnel and thekr remuneration. The Committes has giso framed the criteria for
serlormance evaluation of every Director and accordingly has carried out the performance evaluation.

Based on the recammendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committes, the appoiniment of Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary as Key Manageral Person was formalized during the year.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

There is:a Vigil Mechamism or Whistle Blower policy as per section 177(8) of Companies Act, 2013 prevails as per the size and
operations of the Company. Prolecied disclosures can bemade by a whistie blowsr to the management of the Company.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details for the Tnanclal vear ended 3151 March, 2046 fming part of he extract of the annual retum is encinsed as Annexure-d,
NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

The Baard of Direciore met five fimes during the year endeg 31st March, 2016. The detaéls of the Board meetings and lhe
attendance of Directors are provided in fatter sheets, v

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

Curing the yearended 313t March, 2016 there is na change in the issued and subscribed capita! of your Company, The culstanding
capital as on 316 March, 2016 is T 80,00,000)- comprising of 800,000 equity shares of - gach.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

A5 stipulated by the Cade of Independent Direciors under Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement, 3 separale mesling
of the Indapendent Direciors of the Company was held on Bt February, 2016 to review the performanice’ of fon |ndependent
Directors including the Chairman and the Board a5 whole. The independent Directors also reviewad the gushly, content and
iimeliness of the flaw of information between the Management and the Board and its Cammittees which is necessary fo effectively
and reasonatly perform and discharge their duties



COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS
The Board has constituted the foliowing Committees of Directors:
{a) Audit Committee

The Audit Committes comprises Independent Directors namely Mr. Ghanshyam Das Gupla (Chairman), Mr. Golam
Momen and Mr. Naveen Bansal as ofher members. All the recommendations made by the Audit Commitlee were
accepted by the Boaro,

{b) Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Momination and Rermuneration Committes comprises Independeni Directars namely Mr, Naveen Bansal {Chairman),
Mr. Ghanshyam Das Gupta and Mr. Golam Momen as other members.

(¢} Stakeholder relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Commitles comprises Independeant Directors namely Mr. Golam Momen {Chairman},
Mr. Ghanshyam Das Gupta and Mr. Naveen Bansal as other members.

EVALUATION OF BOARD'S PERFORMANCE

The Company has a system of Formal Annual Evaluation of perfarmance of Board, i's Committees & Individual Direciors a2 per
the size and operations of the Company.

During the year, the Board formuiated and adopted a Board Evaluation Framework for svaluating the performance of the Board
ae 3 whole, Commitiees of the Board and the individual Cirectors on the Board.

Pursuant 1o the said Evaluation Framework, the Board evaluated the performance of the Board, lis Committees and the Individual
Directors for the financial year 2015-18

The Board was of tne view that the performance of he Board as a whole was adequate and fulfilled the parameters stipulated in
the evaluation framework in its pro growth activity and facing challenging aperational, climatic and economic adversities during
the year The Board also ensured thal Ine Committees functioned adequately and indepandently in lerme of he requirements of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requiremenis) Reguiations, 2015 and at the'sams
time supporied a5 well as coordinated with the Board to hefp in its decision making. The individusl Directors’ performance was
aleg evaluated and the Board was of the view that the Direclors fuliflied their apolicabla responsibilities and duties as laid down
by the listing agreement and the Companias Act, 20143 and at the same fime contribuied with their valuable knowledge. exparience
and expadise to grab the cpponunity and counter the adverse chalienges faced by the Company during the year.

AUDITOR'S REPORT & ACCOUNTS

The auditors Messrs Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statulory Auditors of the Company were reappointed as Auditors in
the Annual General Mesting heid on 27th July, 2015 for the period until e conclusion of the 38th Annual General Mesting of the
Company al remuneration 1o be fied by the Boarg from fime to time. Further tha Company has received & letter from them waihe
effiect that their re-appointiment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under section 141(3) the Companies Act, 2013 and
that they are not disqualified for re-appointment.



Annexure 1to the Directors’ Report

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)
RULES, 2014

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chiaf Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the financial
year 2015-18, ratio of the remuneration of each Director 1o the median remuneration of the emloyees of the Company for the
financial year 2015-18 and the comparison of remuneration of sach Key Managenal Personnel (KMP) anainst the perfarmance of
the Company are &% under:

(i Remuneration to the Director/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

Name of Director | KMP Remunerationfor Remuneration for % Change  Ratio to mean
the financial year  the financial year Remuneration
201518 201415
) )
Mz Vilendra Rumar - - - M.A
Mr. Dhirendra Kumar - - - M.
Wir. Sandeep Kumar Jalan . - - N.A,
Mr. Ghanshyam Das Gupta - - - HLA
Mrs. Divya Jalan - - - H.A,
M. Hemant Kumar Agrawal - . - hLA.
Mr. Golam Momem - - - HA
Mr. Alok ®rishina Agarwal - - - MA
Mr. Navegn Bansal - g - M.A,
Mr. Sankar Kumar Basu Sarbadhikary §,12,000 5,446,000 1208 16,191
Mr. Hari Kishan Rajbhar 392350 12.434" M.A. #3811
Ms. Priyanka Sharma 284 503" A NA T.a2

* Eor Part of the year:
* Eor Part of the year (July, 2015 1o March, 2016}

Annexure 2 to the Directors’ Report

THE INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 134{3){M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE §(3) OF THE
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 IS GIVEN HERE BELOW AND FORMS
PART OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT.

Staterment of particulars with respact 1o consenvation of energy, techrology absorption and foreign exchange garnings snd autgo
farming part of Directors’ Report for the year ended 31% March 2016, Necessary infarmation required by Companies (Misclosure
af particulars in Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1986 for conservation of energy, technology absarption and foreign exchange
garnings and outgo enumerated below:



_ FORM A
Farm of Disclosure of paniculars with réspect to conservation of energy -
A)  POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
2015-201 20142018
. Electricity
g Purchazed {Unit) 12,24 264 1119508
Total Amaund (7) 1,00,50,388 B4 31584
Rate/Unit {1 821 753
b} Own Generation
[} Through Diesel (Unit) 2.17.252 245447
Units per itrs. of Dissal T 2E 268
CostUnit (2} 23.43 2271
2 (Gas
Quantity {Scum) 6,00 604 685,515
Totai Amount (2) 10647277 §1,35.888
Rate per 1000 Scum 18415 13
B) CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION
Standards {if any)
Productz - Made Tea (Kgs) 16,54 205 T9.96,970
Electricity {in units)/per Ka 087 081
Gas (in Scum)iper Kg g2 032
FORM-B

Form of disclosure of particulars with respact to Absorption, Research and Devalopment (R 8 D)

Specified area in which R & D carried oul by the Company

Benefils derived as aresult ofabove R&D

Fillure Plan of actian Thie Company subscribes 1o Tea Research
Expenditureon R& D Aasecigtion which s registered undsr
g CapitaiR&D Section 35(i)(if) of the Income Tax Act, 1861
b Recurring

g Toul

d] Total R & D expenditure a5 a percentage of total turnover



Technology absorption, adaptation and Innovation

1. Effeets In brief, miade towards sechnology
absorption, adaptation and inaovation

2 Bangfits derfved a5 @ resull of the above
sffons, e.g productimprovement, cost
reduction, import substitution ic.

Forelgn Exchange Earning and outge
1, . Foreign Exchanged Eamed (F.O.8)
2. Fomeign Exchanged bsed

Registered Office:
1, Crooked Lane
Kalkata - TO00EY

The 14* day of May, 2016

Continuous efforts are being made lowards
absarplion; adaptation and innovation of
technology absorption mamtaning close fiaison
with advisory officer of Tockial Experimental Station,

Ircreass in Productivity and cost reduction by
optimizaton of inputs

- il
- FH AL 172
Mr. CHIREXDRA ¥UMAR (DIN ;- 00153773)
Mr. SHJALAN (DIN - 00015835)
Mrs. DIVYA JALAN (DIN ; 00018102) .
Mr. 3. MOMEN (Dib : 00402662) Chrecior
Mr G.D.GUPTA (DIN : 3174114}
Mr. NAVEEN BANSAL (DIN: 00720211)
Mr H. ¥ AGRAWAL [BIN: 00355116)
Dirscior-Finance
3. SARBADHIKARY (DIN ; 00941840 & Whole-fime
Director



ANNEXURE 3 TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
Form No. MR-3
[ SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3187 MARCH, 2016
[Pursuant to saction 204{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
{&ppaintment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules. 2014}

To

The Members,

The Seottish Assam (Indiz) Lid,
1, Crooked Lane,

Kolkata - 70O 069

We have conductad the Secretarial Audit of the complianse of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 1o good corporals
practices by The Scottish Assam {India) Limited (LO1132WE1877PLCO31175) (hereinalter called "the Company”). The Audit was
condusted in @ manner that provided us 2 reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conductsistatutory compliances and
expressing our opinion therson, .

Based on our verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and cther records maintained by the Company
and also the information provided by the Company, is officers, and autherised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, whereby report that inour opinien the Company has, during the audit pariod covering the financial year ended 31st Mazch,
2016 compliad with the statulory provisions fisted heraunider and alsa that the Company has proper Board- processes and
complisnce-mechanism in piace to the extent, in the mannear and subject to the raporting made hereinafter.

We have examinad the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for
the financial year endad 315t March, 2016 according to the provisions of

| The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the nules mads thereunder,
Il The Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder,
Il The Depositories Act. 1996 and the Regulations and Bye- laws framed thereundes,

I, Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1995 and the rules and regulations mace thereunder 1o the extent of Foreign Direcl
Investment, Overseas Direct Investmant and Exiemnal Commercial Sorrowing,

V. The following Reguiations (as amended from fime 1o time ) and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1582 ("SEB! Act)-

2] The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,
b The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Prohitition of insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
¢ The Securities and Exchange Beard of India (Regisirars to an Issue and Share Transfer Aganis} Regutations, 1993,

d} The SEBI Listing {Listing obligation and disciosure requirements <LODR>) Regulations 2015.

[The following Regufations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1932
(*SEBI Act') are not applicable to the Company for the financial year ended 31-03-2016:-

{a) The Securifies and Exchange Board of India (Emplayee Siqek Ootion Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidetines, 1998;

{b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {!ssue and Listing of Dent Securities) Regulations, 2008,
{c] The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares} Regulations, 2009; and



() The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securilies) Reguiations, 1988,

ig] The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disciosure Requiremants) Reguiations, 2009;
VI. The following Industry Specific laws:

2 Teafct 1053

bi  Tha Tea Waste (Control) Order, 1554

¢t The Tea Warehouse (Licensing) Order, 1988

di - The Tea (Marketing) Control Order, 1384

& Tea(Distibation and Export} Contred Order, 2005

fi FSAAl (Food Safety and Standasds Authority of india) Act. 2006
We have aiso examined complance with the apphicable clauses of the following:

(il The Listing Agreemant or SEBI {Listing Obiigation and Disclosure Requirernants) Reguiation, 2015 (LODR) entersd
iro by the Company with The Caleulta Stock Exchange Uimited.

fil) - Secretarial Standards issusd by the Ingtilute of Company Secrataries of fndia,

During the perod under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Siandasds, elc. mentioned above.

Wie further report that:

“The Board of Dirsctors of the Company is duly constifutied with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Direclors,
Independen! Directors and 3 Woman Direclor. The changes in the composition of ihe Board of Directors thal tock piace during the
period Under review Were carfied out in compiiance with the provisions of the Act and LOOR,

Adequate Notice is given to all Dirsctors to schedule the Soard Meelings. Agenda and detaled Notes on Agenda wara sent
atleast seven days In advance, and & system exists for seeiing and obtaning further informaton and clarifications an the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful patticipation al the meefing.

Weturtner rEpartEh'm there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurals with the size and operations of
the Company fo monitor and ensure compliance with applicabie laws, fuies; regulations and guidelines as also represeniad by
ihe management All decisions of the Baard were unanimous and the same was capiursd and recoded as part of the Minutes

W further report that during the sudil period, the Company has not made any.
{il Pubiic.ﬂighh‘ Prefareniial issue of Shares/Debentures/Bweal Equity or any ofher Securlly.
{iiy,  Redemplion ! buy-back of secufities.
i} Major decisions laken by the Membess in pursuance (o section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013.
(i) Merger Amaigamation’ Reconstruction efc.
(v}  Foreign technical coflaborations,

For DROLIA & COMPANY
(Campany Secrafanes)

Place; 9, Crooked Lane
Kolkata - 700 069 Pravin Kumar Drolia
Praprigtor
Date:  The Tth day of May, 2016 CP Ne. 1362



ANNEXURE 3 TO THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT{CONT )

T,

The Membigrs,
Thie Scottish Assam {India) Limited,
1. Crooked Lane, Kotkata TO0089

Curreportol even date s (o be read along with s letter

1

3

4]

3

8)

Mainteniance of secretarial racord is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is 1o express as
spirion on these secretadal records based on cut audil

We nave foliowed the audit practices and processes as were appeopriate io obtain reasonable assurance about ihe comectness
of the contents of the Secretarial records: The verification was done on tes! basis 1o ensure 1nal correct facts are refiscted in
secretanial records. We batieve thal the processes snd practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinian.

We have nol verified the comestness and appropriateness of financial records and Sooks of Accounts of the Company

Where ever required we have oblained the management representation abuut the compliance of [aws, rules and regulations
and hiappening of events els.

The compliancs of the provisions of corporate and other spplicable laws: tules, requiations, standards iz 1he responsipiity of
management. Our examination was limited to verfication of procedures on test basis

The Secretanial Auditreport is neither an assurance as to the future viabdity of the Company nor of the efficacy of effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Compeany,

For DROLIA & COMPARY
{Company Secrataries)

Place: 9, Crooked Lang
Kolkata - 700 069 Pravin Kumar Drolia
Proprietor
Date:  The Tth day of May, 2016 CP e 1362



ANNEXURE 4 TO THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Form No. MGT-8
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

A8 ON THE ENANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2016
[Pursuant to section 92{3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rufe No. 12(1) of the Companies
{Management and Administration] Hules, 2014

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

D [ Lo1132WB1877PLCO3 TS
{ii} | Registration Date 27th Seplamber, 1977
{ifi} | Name of the Company THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INCIA) LTD
- {iv) | Category/Sub-Category of he Comgpany TEA
(v} | Address of the Registered Office 1, Crocked Lana, Kolkata - 700 089
(i) | Whether Listed Company Listed
{vil)| Wame, Address and coptact details of Regisirer MBS Consuitant Pyt LI
*atephen House” Room Ho.-89. &in Fioor,
4 BBD. Bag East) Kolkata - 700 001
| P+ (033) 2230-1043

. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

The principal business activity of the Company is of manufecturing and sale of TEA. It compnses 100%, of total tumover af
ihe Company

iIl.  HOLDING SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

(SANGA STEEL & ALLOYS LIMITED
V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
{iy  Tahle |- Category-wise Share Holding

Mo, of Share held as on 31.03.2018 No. of Share held as on 31.03 2045 o
Category of Shareholding | Demat | Physicall Total % of | Demat | Physical| Total | %of | Change
Total Total | during
Shares Shares | the year
A Bromoters & Promoder Group 552050 471507 GOOD0D0 75% | s4B500 £3500| 600000 Ti% -
B Fublic geaze | 10si7e | 200008 a% | 83122 | 10BRTA| 20000 5% 4
> Mon Promotar -
Men Public
| Shares Underlying DRs - - - - = g - 4
I} -Shares heid by Employes Trusts = - = - c . - i
Total | sarera | 15328 | somoop | t00%| 6as622 180378 | B00000 | 100%




(i} Table It - Statement showing sharehoiding pattern of the Promoter and Promoter Group and changes during the year

Name | No. of Shares held as |No. of Shares held as'
on 31032016 on 3032015 | % Chﬂ"?lﬂ Shares | gparoe
No.of | of Toal | No.of |%of Total| " 02"® | JME | in Demat
Shares | Shares |Shares | Shares

1} INDIAN
a} Individual / HUF
Vijendra Kumar 100 .01 1@ 0.01 - - 100
Hemant Kumar Agarwal 300 .04 200 a.04 - - 300
Smita Agarwal 400 (.08 400 4.08 : - 400
Alzka Jalan 500 004 500 005 - : 00
Marendra Kumar - - ] 0.08 - - -
Mayank Kumar Agarwal . . 750 Qs - - 5
Sandhya Aganwal B0 010 | Ba0 g - . Ban
Smita Sarat &00 014 Ban a.10 3 - B0
Manish Kumar 1525 0.14 K g:10 08 = 1528
Pramod Rani B0 a1d BO0 0.10 - - 800
ila Rani Agarwal 80 040 | 800 210 - - 200
Prabha Rani Agarwal | 818 (.10 gig g1g | - . 81%
Arvind Kumar Agarwal | 500 0.1 500 0:11 - - 800
Mudit Kximar 1008 03 | 1000 013 - - 1003
Bajrang Prasad Jalan - - 1028 0.13 - - -
Rajendra Kumar Aganwai 1151 D4 | 15 014 - - 1151
Ritlsa Kumar 7850 089 | 7950 0.59 - - 7950
Civya Jatan 10402 130 | 10402 130 . : 10402
Sandesp Kumar Jalan 118925 1.48° | 16900 1.36 013 - 1e25
Mayank Kumar 2 - BEOD 070 - . =
Divyas Kumar 6350 0.79 - - 0.1 - 5250
Shashi Kumar | 13288 186 | 13228 1. - - 13288
Pradip Kumar Khaitan *o 20000 1500 120000 153 . 6750 113250
{In the capacity of trustee of Tea | |
Trust erested by ewsting promaters) | il
Total [ 179810] 2246 [179810) 2246 | 1.04 8750 | 173060
b) Central Govl. | State Gowl, B - - - - - -
&) Finangial Institution | Banks - - - - - - -
d) Any olher{spetify) Bodies Corporals
Supriya Finange Lid | 308 0,04 10 .04 = L 300
Sandeep Investments Lid | 400 0.05 | 400 .05 - - |
Shreyans Inv Pyt. LId. 400 0.05 400 005 - 400 | -
Purushotiam Inv Pl Lid. 23447 2B 22447 28 - - 22447
Arohi Holdings Put. Ltd, 15800 156 18600 1.8 - - 15800
Shree Durga Agencies Lig BaoaD| 10.3% | #3pen | 1038 : : E3020
Innowzlion Handicrafis {indig Pvi. Lid, 237685 285 22763 285 - - 22765
SPBP Inv Pvi. Lid 45000 565 | 45000 563 - - 45000
Niréan Commercial Co. Lid. 86953 1067 | 26863 10:87 - - 6983
SWPL Prodects Put. Lid. 13130 1.684 13430 1.64 - - 1330
hryavrat Trading Pvt, Lid. 0075 126 | 10078 | 126 . - 10075
SPBF Tea Plantation Lid. M0 433 | 34800 4.33 - - 3600
Maryada Advisory Services Put. Lid, 45250 BEb | 45200 5 66 - - 45290
Aarvee Trading Co. Pt Lid 40030 500 [ 40000 5.00 - 40000 -
Total | 42111501 255 | 420190 52.55 . 40400 aTeTa0




{iif)

Hame

Wo. of Shares held as|No. of Shares held as|
on 31.03.2016 on 3032045 | % Change

No. of
Shares

% of Tatal | No. of % of Total
Shares |Shares| Shares

during the
year

Shares
held in
physical

Shares
in Bamat

Mulest Fund
Trust
Others

| Sub Total (A){1)

B00000

75% | 600000 |  75%

47150

552850

7) FOREIGN

a} MR/ Forsign Individusls
! Foreign: Govl. Promoier
¢} Foreign Inst. lrwsl, (Flls)
d) Foregn Postfolio Invesior

Cwerseas Corporate Bodies
Foresgn Bank

&) Any Othiet {specdy) Foreign Company

Sub Total (A){2)

Total Sharenolding of Promoter
and Promoter Group (A) s{ANT)
+ [A)2)

600000

T5% 600000 5%

47150

552850

Table 1l - Statement showing shareholding patiern of the Public Shareholder

Hame

No. of Share held a8 on 31.03.2016

No. of Share held a5 on 31.03.2013

Demat

Physical

Total % of | Demat
Total
Shares

Physleal

Total

% of
Total
Shares

1} Imstititions
a) Mutual Funds | UTH
&) Mendure Capitat Funds
&) Altemate Invest Fund
dj Forgign Venture Gapital Invesior
g} Forexgn Partioho investor
fi Financizl Insttdion | Banks
1) insurance Companies
hi Prowident Fund | Pengion Funds
il Any olher {speciy)
Foezign Inst Invst, (Fils)
Sub Totab (B)Y)
2} Central Gowt. | State Gavt)
Prezigent of India
Siib Totat (B)(2)
%) Non-trstitutions :
al Individuais
it Indv Shareholders hoiding
naminal share capdal upio

105178

7 2 lakh

50322

155500 19.44 | 105678

4BR22

165600

1844




@ THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

Name No. of Share held as on 31.03.2016 Mo. of Share held as on 31.03.2013
Demat | Physical| Total %of | Demat | Physical | Total % of
Total Total
Shares Shares

&) Indv. Shareholders. holding . - : = = - ; =
norminal shars capiial o excess
pf T 2lakhs

b} NBFG registered wih REBI - - . . z -

¢ Emphayess Trusy = = 5 . - -

i) Cversass Daposiiodes - - - = -
{hotding DR {baiancing figure)

&) Any Oifer jzpeciy]

Bodies Corporate
i Holding 1% and 2bove . 1
1) Getal Cradd Capital Limited - 213598 21358 287 - 74308 | 21308 267
7) Mittal Sales Private Limited - 21398 21389 e BT - 21308 | p13se 287
i) Hoiding less than 1% - 1053 1853 03 - 1053 1053 g &
Hon Resident Indian
ij Halding 19 and above 550 550 oar - 550 550 aor

ii] Helting fess thas 1% = = L . 3 2 e P
Frreigr Hational . . = $ ‘ 5 5 :
Cereaas Corporate Bodies . - z & ] : = N
Forelgn Banks = - z - . 3 §

Trust . 2 Z 4 . y §
Custodian Al 2 i = : .
1. Jandiah B Ganihi 104 100 el L 100 100 001

Total z 105178 94822 | 200000 5% | 4BEZZ 151378 (200000 5%

V  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Name No. of Shares held as Mo. of Shares held as % Change
on 31.03.2016 on 31.03.2015 during the year

Na. of % of Total No. of % of Total
Shares Shares Shares Sharas

M. Sandeep Kumar Jalan 11825 149 +0R00 1.36 B3

Mrs. Divya Jalan 10402 1.30 1042 1.30 -

Mr, Vijgndra Kumiar 100 o0 100 0.01 i

Mr. Chirendra Kimar . - - - -

r, Bemant Kumiar Agrawal iy 04 300 G4

Mr. Ghanshyam Das Guota 100 0m 100 o0 -

Mr. Galamy Marrsen gao 010 o) 6.0

Mr. Mavesn Bansal - . - - -

r. Alok Krishra Agarwal = =

Mr. Sanka Kumar Basu Sarbadhikary. | - : - -

Wir. Hari Kishan Rabhar . - - -

Ms. Priyanka Sharma - - ‘ . -

Total 2327 285 2602 282 013




THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

VI Indebledness of the Company including Interest outstanding Faccured but not due for payment ;

Secured Loans | - Unsecured Deposits Total
Particulars excluding Loans indebiedness
depaosits
&) i 2 i

Indebtedness at ihe beginning of the financial year
{i} Principal Amount BB.41.343 . : B6,41,343
{ii} Interest dise but not paid - : : 2
(i} interest sccruad bul nol dug

Total {+i+iil) 58.41,343 ? : " B.41,343

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
- Addiiions il . 2 ; -
Rediciion 5941343 - - 50.41343
Net Change 59.41.343. S ARG AL43
“|ndebtedness at te end of the finantial year
(i} Principal Amount 908,000 . w 8,00.000
fil} merest due but nol paid 24,100 - . 24,108
fﬁE}'lﬁtérest_a“*;l:rueﬂ Bl Aot die = - - =
Total {i+i+ii) 9,24.108 2 . 824100

Vil Shareholding pattem of top ten shareholders {other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Ho. of Shares heid a5 No. of Shares heid as
Name i an 31.03.2016 on 31.03.2015 % Change

No.of | % of Total No. of % of Tota] | during the year

Shares Shares Shares Shares
Mital Sales Pl Ltd '- 21389 267 21309 267 £
Ot Cradit Capital Lid 21358 267 21398 28T -
Wahendra Girdharla! 2400 025 2100 028 ~
Bimla Rani Jain 1100 0.44 100 014 -
Prahlad Ral Jain 1800 0.24 800 0.24 : =
Natarajn Ravi Shankar 1200 0.15 1200 045 -
Ranu Gupta 1200 0:15 1200 C.15 =
Sesma Sogan 1100 {14 1100 0,14 -
Mahendra Kr. Bagrodia 800 0.1 : : 010
Ajay-Manharizl Jily. Nitesh Manharial 8OO 0.40 - . Q.10
Total 52697 662 - 51397 6.42 0.20




‘) THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

VIl Remuneration of directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Al hé Divesters of your Camipany are entifled to Sitting Fees only excepl Mr. Sankar Kumar Basu Sarbadhivary and other

detalls are as under -
raing. Kesignation mnﬁg:ﬂm Flnf:nr:‘:ln‘:ear
(%)
Nir. Sankar Kumar Bast Sarbadhikary Ditector - Financs designated 812000
o — - 2 MDIEJM ”*W‘r Salary as per
Mr, Harl Kishan Raibtiar Chigt Financial Officer e T 392,350
Ms. Priyanka Shama Company Secrelary A5
** For thepart of the year (Joined in the menth of July, 2015)
X Meetings of the Board & Remuneration to the Directors :
Navlecd e ' No. of Board Meetings Attended Last AGM : _ﬂ&mu'nltl;ntln{f:l
y paid as sitting fees
Droctucs Held Attended held on 27.07.2015 2]
Me. Viendra Kumar 5 3 YES : 15,000
Mr. Dhirendra Kiiar 5 5 YES 25,000
Mr, Sandeep Kumar Jalan 5 4 YES 20,000
Hlrs: Divya Jaian 5 2 NO 10,000
Mr, Galam Mamen 5 5 YES: 25000
kr, Ghanshyam Das Gupta B 5 YES ! 25.000
Mr. Navesn Bansal 5 4 YES 20,000
Mr. Raghvendra Mohia : 5 0 NO
Mr. Heman! Kuriar Agrawal 5 0 N :
Wr. Sankar Kumar Sasu Sarbadhikary 5 =5 YES _ NA
X Meetings of the Committees
No. of Audit No. of Stakeholders |  No. of Nomination &
Natme of the Committee Meetings Relationship Remuneration .
Directors : | Committee Metings Commitiee Metings
Held Attended | Held | Attended Meld | Attended
Mr. Gotam Momen
Mr. Ghanshyam Dias Gupta
Mr. Naveen Bansal 4 4 2

¥ Remuneration to other directors:
L independent Directors :

The Independent Directors of your Company are not entitied to any cthar kind or type of remuneration except sitting fees.
XHl Penalties [ Punishment! Compounding of Offences ; Mona



THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

] INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accomganying financial statements of THE SCOTTISH ASSAM {INDIA) LIMITED (‘the Company’), which
comprise the Balance Sheat a5 at 31 March 2018, the Siafement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Stalement for the year then
ended, and 3 summary ¢f significant accounting policies and ofher explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Direclors i responsible for the matters stated i Section 1.34(5) of the Compantes Act, 2013 [the-Act’)
with respect fo the preparation of these financial stalements that give a tiee and fair view of the financial pesition, tinancial
periormance ard cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accaunting pnncrpha-s generaliy amep:ec in India, including
{he Accoanting Stancands specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rale 7 of the Compaames{ﬂmnts} RﬂiEﬁ 2&14 This
responsibility alsa inciudes maintenance of acequate accounting records in accordanca wilh he prowsions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assels of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauas and ather imegulanties; selection and application of aporopriate
-accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and mainienance
of adequate intemal financial controls, that were aperating effectively for ensuring (he accuracy and complatenass of the accounting
ramrds. relevani to the pmpar—a{’i{m and prasentation of the finansial stat&mmts 'hai give & tnuaand fair vm Fnd ane fres from
misterial misstatament, whether due fo fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY
Qur responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these financia! siatements based on our audt,

We hiave taken into acoount the provisions of the Ack, the accounting and auditing standards and matiers which are required 1o be
included in thi sudit repant under the provisions of the Act and the Rufes made fhere undar,

We conducted our auditin accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143{10) of the At Those Standards
requite thal we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit fo oblain reascnable assurance about whethar the
fingncial statemants are fres fiom maierial misaiataratsﬂ:

An audit invalves peﬁmmlng protedures o obisin audil evidence about the amounts afmmedmclﬂwrﬂs i H‘feﬂna.nmm statemants:
The procedures ssiected depend on the audiiors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
finarcial statements, whether due fo fraud of rror. In making: thise fisk ‘assassments; the sudifor considers internal Anancial
- control relevant to the Company's preparation of the: financial slalements that give & frue and fair vien' it order to design aud!
procedures that are approprate in ihe Gifcumsiances.. An audit a'so includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and tha reasonableness of the accounting- estimates made by ihe Company's Dirsctors, a8 well as evaluating the
overall prasantation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial staternents.
OPFINION

i our oinicn and 1o the best of cur infarmation and acconding fo the explanations given 1o us, the aforesaid financial stalemanis
give the information reguired by the Act in the manner 5o required nd give a true and fair visw in‘conformity with the acoounting
pnnmpies. generally accapted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2018 and its profit and s cash flows
fot the year ended on that date.



@ THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

EMPHASIS OF MATTER
Wee draw attention’ to the following fmatter in the Notes to the financial statements:

Altention is drawn 1o Note Mo, 2,10 regarding carry forward of Diefermad Tax ﬁsaetamaunnng ipfs 8,33 Tzﬂf- on camrmﬁ eapﬁai
losses as an 3ts! March 2016 based on fulure taxable ingome projected by fhe management

Ciuroparion:s notmadified in respact of this matter
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGI.}L&TMY REEI.HREHEHTS

As reguired by the Companies {Aucitor's Repart). Cirder, 2016 ["the Order’} issued by the Ceniral Government of sndla in
terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Act, we giva in the Annextre A aﬁtat&mntun the matters specified n the

1

“garagraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the exlent applicatie.

s required by Ssmm 143 ;33 ﬁf meﬁm we report that:

5

WEIE RECESSAry for tne ;:«urpases of our. audit

i cur opinion proper books of account as reglired by e hrave been kept by e c.':mpany 5o faras riapﬂﬂars
fram our exammation of those books;

‘FhﬁBaianr:e Eheet ‘the S!alerr\'&ntaf Profit ang Loss and the Cash Fm Emmantﬁﬂallmm{w his Fiepcr! aein
agreament with the books of ccount,

In our opinicn, the aforesaid financial stalements comply wilh the Accouriing Si:andards $p&mﬁed under sadmn
13% of the Act, est with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rutes, 2014, i

On fhe basis of the writien fapreseniations received from the diractors as on 31s! March 9016 taken on record By

- the Board of Directors, none.of the directors is qumrﬁed as on-31sl March 2016 from being appointed as a

director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With-respect 1o the adequacy of Ihe internal financial controfs over financiat 'eponlng of the Company amﬁ the.
operating sfiectiveness of such controls, I‘&TEI fa aurmparate report in Anmure ‘B‘
Wiih respect fohe giher matlers fo be included in the Auditors Report in atcardance with Reledt aﬂﬁ&{:mmpanms
{Audit and Auditars) Rules, 2014, in oir aginion and tofhe best nmur:nfurmsnanmﬁ ammgtathe exp!an&'lms
given fous:
i TheCompany has disclosed the impact of pending fifigations-on its financial p-w!mml!s frianmsd atammms
[ Refer hote .23,
i, The Gompany did not'have any msterial foreseeable losses on loetg term contracts: ncluding d&n\r@we'
confracts;
ii. There has been delay of 11 days in transfigrring Rs, 48 518/ relating wotnancial year 2007-08, mwlmd iobe
ransterred, to the Investor Education and Prolection Fund by the Company-
For 'Sjﬂﬁi_t“t'& €0,
Chartered Accountarts.
Firm's Registration No.302049E

[ADITVA SINGHI}

Place: Kolkats O Paner
The 14" day of May, 2016 Membarship No: | 305161
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ANNEXURE *ﬁTﬁ THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Annexure referrsd ain paragrapn Tundet the heading* Aeporton Dﬂ'larl_%a;amﬁggma:m Requirements" of our Independent
Auditors' Report of even date in respect to stalutory audit of The Scottish Assam {india) Limited for the year ended 31 Mareh 2016,

we report that:

i

; ,_[a; The Company has maintained proper records showing full p-art:me4 including quantitative detafls and siluation.of

fived assets

- {0} According to: the mfm'sahm and gxplanalion given fo-us, the fm&d assefs of Ihe company have been physically

i,

yl.

sl

~werifled by dhe managﬂmem during the yaar based on a phased manner and no malefiai discrapancies between book
records and physical inventory have been noticed. [n abr opinion, the frequency is ieasanahre

{c) _&mm‘irng__p: the information and explanations given fo.us and on the basis of cur examination of the records of the
Company, the itle deeds of immovatile properies are hald in the name of the Company. '

The mmmw Ee;tqhdzng stocks with third pminez] has been physically verified & reasonable intervals daring the year by ine

.Managmnt. n respect of mvmtury' Iyinp.with tdmf partias, these have bem subskanaaﬂy confirmad by them: The

discrepancies noficed on venfication between the physical stock and the b&ﬂi‘.s‘tﬂﬁlﬁ whereves gscenained ware not signifieant
and have been properly dealt in the books of BCCOETS,

i ‘our opinion and mrﬁing to thie informstion and explanations given to s, the Company has: not gfantm any lganto
pariies covered in the tagzater m‘ntamd unider section ‘ISQ of the Companies Act, 2D13 This, paragtaph 3jii) of the Crder
fs not applicable.

i,n our opinion and according 1o the information and expranalicns Given 3 us; the Company hes complisd with me provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect lo the Joans and investments made. The Gurrepmy has metther issusd gy
QUEI’ENEE‘MF has provided any security on behalf of any party.

it upmmn and aceording to the information” and explanations given-to us, the Company did not recelveany d»epusﬁs
caversd under sections 73 to 76 of the Companes Act and the rufes framed there under with regarg 10 deposits accapled
friom the mbﬁc during the year

' The maintenance of cost resrds preseribed under sub»samzm (1) of Section uﬂaﬂhem:sm mmEmtheﬂmmany

Eiumg the year.

{a) According to the information 2nd exﬁaﬁaﬂms given fo'us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
‘Company, amounts deducted! accrued in the books of account in respect of undisouted statutory dises including provident
fund, income tax, salestaw, servioe tax, duty of cusioms, value added {ax, cess and oiher malerial slalutory dueshave
bean reguitarty deposiied during the year by the Company with the appropriate aulhorities. ﬁmmﬁngfa the infarmatian
and explanations given to us, no undisputed smounts payable in rezpect of provident fund, income lax, sales tax,
service tax, duty of customs, value added tax. cess and other materiai stalutory dues wera in armears as at 31 March
2018 ’rfa?r a period of more-than six months from the date they became payabls.

{b} = Amm‘dn‘}g to1he information and explanations given te us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are
nio dues of sales tax, wealth tax, sarvice tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added fax and cess as. at 31st
March, 2016 which have not been depesiled on account of dispute. The pariculars of dues of income tax a5 at st
March: 2048 which have net been deposited on account of dispute are as under;



il

wi

Xl

i,

XN,

WV

Name of the Statute | Mature of the Amoiint in | Perod - Forum Where |
dues Rs: Lakhs | disputeis pending |
Income Tax At thotme Tax 4.1 Y023 Comimissionas of
Bemand Income Tax Appeals |

Aboording to the records of the Comparny ‘examined by us ahd the infsmation and explanations given io'us, the Company
hais not dafaultad in repayment of dues to banks a4 3l the balance sheet date

i i ta,t:&nl-:}n and atiording 1o the information and explanations given o Ls. the Et:bmpaﬂy ‘has not raised any fhonay
through inftial pubic offer further public offer (including debt instruments) and Ihe ferm loans during the year hance the
clause {ix) of the Order is st applicatle

According o' the irformiation and explanations giver to ué, no matenial fraud by the Company of on the Company by iis
officers or employees has baen noticed or reparted during the course of our audic

Aroording f theinformation and axplanations given 1o us and based on our sxamination of the recerds of the Companty, the
Company ‘s ;}alde'pmw&ed mianagartal remuneration during the financial year which is withif the limits ﬁea&cﬂ!red Lindar
provisions of section 187 read with Sehedule V to the act,

it our opinion and according to the information and explanations given lous, the Company is wntanmsmmpﬂny Mmrdmghr

 paragraph 3{xil} of the ‘Cirdas'is mot applicabie.”

Apoonding 16 the information and exgienations given to us and Based on cur examinatlon of the Tecords of the Gonigany,
transactions with the related parfies =re in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable ar:ﬁi:fa!alis af
such fransactions have been disclosed in the financial statemants as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and asad on auraxamination of ihe records of the Compary, the
Company has not maie any preferenhm alﬁcrtrnant o private placement of shares or fully or parlly converibie debentures

derr“fg the year.
hmozdwg tar the information and explanations givenlous and based on our exﬂmmmionm.zhgmrdsdfihéﬂbmpaw, the
Company hias not enteredinlo non-cagh transactions with direciors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph

“3xv) of the Order is nof apphcable.

The Company |5 nat required to be registered under section 45-14 of the Rasmw Bank of India Act, 1934

For SINGHI& €O,
cnmew Accountants
Firm's Regisiration No 3020498

[ADITYA SINGHI)

Place: Kolkata _ ' - Parmer
The 14" day of May, 2016 ' Membership No. - 305161



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDTTOR'S REPORT = ;
The Annexurs fefered 10 in paragraph 2(f) under the Heading *Repont on Cther Legal and Regulatory Requiremants” of our Independent
Audilors' Report of sven date in respedt o the iermal financial conral ugder clause (i) of sub-section 3 of secfion 143 of tha Act of The Hishi
ssam (India) Limited foe the year ended 31 Macch 2015, we repori hat:
Wi have audled fhe intermat inancialcontrols ave inancial eporting of The Scottish Assam {India) Limited {“he Company’) as of 15t arch
2016 in conjunction with cur sugit of the financial statements of the Company or the year ended on that date.
MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Compary's management is fespansiol. for estabiishing and maintaining miemal financial controls based on the intersal control Guer
financial reporting cilena estabiished by the Company considering e essaitiaf components of intamat contral Stated in the Guidance Note on
Rt of intemial Einancial Coniross over Financial Reporting issued by the Instiute of Chartered Accountants of india (1CAY). These responsibilties
inclide the- design, implementalen and maintenance of adequate ntemal financial conlrols that were ooetsling efectively for ensuring the
ety and efficient conduat of s busiess, incuing adnerence 1o company s policies; -the safequarding of its assels, the pravention and
deteclon of frauds s emors, theaccuracy and completeness of the accounting records; and the timely preparation o reliabie finangial infesmatian,
as required nder ha Ack. :
- AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY .
Ot responsibiity IS 1h 2kpréss an cpinion onvthe Company’s miemal financial confrols over Anancial reporing pased on pursudit We conducted
ol aud in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of intemal Financial Cantrals over Financiz] Reporting {the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Audiing, ssued by ICA! and deemed fo be prescribed Lnder section $43;10} of the Comparies dict, 2013 1o the sxent applicabie
to:an audt of intema financial contruls, bolh apgficable to an adit o ntethal Financial Controls and; both ssued by ICA! Thoss Standasds and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audi to/sbiain reasinabie assurance about
whelrer adequate intermial financial tontiol over financial repaiting was established and maintained and if sueh conirols opersted effectively in
alf matesial respects. T
Cur audit ineives perfoniing procedures o obtain sl evidenice aboll the adeguacy of Ihé intemal Francal controls system e fimancial
sepiting ard Hiei aperating ofiectivensss, Our aulit of inteenal financial conlrols over finantial reporting incladed obiaifing 2 understanding
of inlernal financial controls over financial feporting, assessing the Misk that a material weakness exists, and festing and ewaluating ihe desion
and perzting efiactiveness of intemat control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selacted depend on the aliditors’ judgment, including.
the assessment of (he risks of material missiatement of the financial staterents, whether due o fraud of emor
\We befieve that the audil evidence we fiave oblained is sufficient and appropriate 0 provids @ basis for our audit opinion on the Company's
imternal financis! confrols system over financial reporting: ‘
MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING _ :
& company's intermial financial control over financial raporting is & process designed 1o provide reasonanle assurance regarding e sefiabiiy of
financial repofting and the preparation of financial statements for extemial purposes in accardance with g atoepied accounting principles.
A company’s inlemal financial conirol over fivancial reporting includes fhose paiices and procedures tha (1) pertain to ihe maintenance of
records that, in reasonable defail, accuralery and fainy refiect the transatfions @nd dispositions of the assels of the aompaay; ) provida
reasonatie assirance thal transactions are recorded as necessary o pemi preparation of financial statements in accordance with gererally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipls 2nd expenditures of the Company are being made orly in accordance wih authorizations of
management and threctars of the company, and {3} provide feasonatie assirance regarding prevention or imely detection of unauthorized
seiuistion, use, o disposiion of te company's assels that coud have a materal effect on the financial stataments.
INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS QVER FINANCIAL REPORTING '
Becauss of the inherent mitations of intemal Fnancial controls over financial reporting, inciuding the possibiity of colusion of improper Managament
awerride of pontrots, material misstatementsdus fo emor or fraud mazy ocowr and not be detected. Also, proclions of any evaluslidn 1 the
rterniat financial controts over financial reporting to fullre pericds are subject to the fisk fiiat the mtemal financial conlre: over financial reporting
may bacome inadequate because of changes in coneitions, or that the degres of compliance wilk the policies of procedites may deteriorate.
OPINION ' :
In our opision, the Company has. in all material respects, an adequaie fnternal financial controls system oiver financial reparting ang such
‘internal finzncizl controls over fszncial repoding wels aperating eectively a5 at 31 March 2016, based on the miemal conlre over firancial

g criteria establishied by the Compaiy considering the essenfial companenis of internal control stated in the Guidanes Note on Abdd of
Intermal Financial Comtrols Qwer Finangial Repadting issued by ICAL :

For SINGHI & CO;

Chartersd Actountents
Firm's Registration No.302049E
ADITYA SINGH!
Place: Kolkats f IWAE&E&%{
. The 14" day of May, 2016 Membership No. 7 305161

&)



THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

i i BALANCE EHEET AS AT : 31ST MARCH, 2016

Az At March 31, 2015

Note  As At March 31, 31,2006
No. ? 2 AR
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ' 0 i 4
Sharehoiders’ Funds i
Shara Capital g.‘l' B0, 00,000 R ﬂgtﬁﬂ
Reserves & Sumus 2 27,10,58, 587 FHEITZEIT
' 22.90,68,567 i e P
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ' Sl T
Liomg-Term Bomawings # R 1l 46:54.085
Long-Terh Provisions - 24 40,500 DS - e e
ﬂ.m' T L e l“lir'lgl."-.'ﬁa'L
CURRENT LIABILITIES i 5
Shori-Term Borowings 25 3.02,49,356 3684087
Trede Payables 26
Total cutstanding dies of i .
enterprises and smal enterprises o
Tntal outstanding dues of creditors othar 1,28,55 802 107 000
thvan micr enierprises and smah entemnses : :
Othier Carent Liabiites: 27 . 17,34,459 78.12.581
Shori-Term Provisions 24 22047018 1,24.68.183 Ll
7 | —————— TR R e il a.mezg&a
TgﬁL:ﬂUtT? AND LIABILITIES . 302085753 (2RB0.38493
ASSET
WON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed Azsels 8 A oy e
Tangible 2,33,70,818 23228110
intangitle ' fodis i } =
Capital Work In Progress 1,50,000 < AE1 468
Non-Current Inveztments 8 2‘3,54}31 325 230434325
Dieffered Tax Assiis (Net) 240 7.16.251 4.04:753
Lang-Tenm Loans and Advances 244 73,144,198 _ : THE7.ETT
: ' 26,80,50,003 s e e AR
CURRENT ASSETS ’ ; :
frveniories. 212 267,001,888 LT84
Trads Receivables = 243 10,28.724 B8.85:461
E:ash and Bank Balances 214 29,36,560 B385.820
Shor-Term Loans ang Advances: in 3345198 3430045
Cither Cument Assets R L K [ ; 28620 i
TOTAL-ASSETS G mr;%; 753 o Eﬂ'@ﬂﬁﬁ%
Signiﬁcfan'l Accolinting | Policlas 1 .
The accompanying notes are an integeal par of tha Financial Statements #
As per our report of even date annexed " For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors
Mr: {JHEF'.EhDR.P- KIMAR (BN Q0153773
i B Mr. 5K JALAN (DIN : DOD15836)
For SINGHIRCO. i
i de T $rs. DIVYA JALAN (DIN : 00016102)

Mr G MOMEN (DIN -00402862)° Director
Mr. G. . GUPTA (DI : 00174114)
Mt NAVEEN BANSAL (DIN - 00720211)

Fifm Regisiration No. 302049E

gqg:;:gsmem} Mr, H. K AGRAWAL {DIN : 00355116

Membership No. : 305161 Mi. S SARBADHIKARY (DIN 1 00941840) - tﬁmarﬁnm
Place - Kolkata Ms. PRIVANKA SHARMA - Company Secrefary
Date : The 147 day of May, 2016, Mr. H. K. RAJBHAR - Chief Financial Officer



@ THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

SigrificantAccounting Policies

The accompanying noties are aniniegral part of the Financial Stalsinents

[ STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
1 Note For the Year ended For ihe Year ended
3st March, 2016 3tst March, 2015
No. L4 T
INCOME z
Revenue from Operations 218 28,40,98,880 30,52,.65.928
Cithist Income 247 38,51,893 10912368
Total Income 26,79,50,753 316158323
EXPENSES '
Cost of Materials Consumed 248 4,58,14,508 440,85,078
(ncrease)Decraase in Invenlories :
of Finished Goods - 213 {1,10,22,939) 48,54 444
Employes Benelits Expense 220 10,83,94,922 5,49.93.608
Finange Costs 221 45,25 535 5792748
{Other Expenses 222 11,06,36,301 14,4185 8681
Total Expenses 75,83.98,267 20 3585 740
Profit before Tax and Depraciation 2,95,52,486 2SRz E8T .
Depresiation 53,21,378 53,428,313
 Profit before Tax T 24231108 168,16,270
Tax Expense:
Current Tax 58,50,000 22 50,000
Tax Related to Earier Yesrs (31,304} 877,653
Deferred Tax (3.71,498) 16,35,630)
Profit for the year 1,87,84,000 1,44 24 247
Basic & Diluled Eamings Per Share
[nominal vahse 105 23.48 18.03
Weighted Average of Equity Shares 8,00,000 800,000

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

M. DHIRENDRA KUMAR(DIN (05377
NF SCJALAN (DIN | 00015536)

As per our report of even date annexed.

For SINGH! & CO. e :

: : DN
Charfsfea'ﬁacnus_ifaﬂts " wauﬁmﬁﬁﬂri _lgmgﬂzg;g;m] Diractor
B Ag - S Mr G D. GUPTA (DIN - 0D174114)

" Mr. NAVEEN BANSAL (DIN : 00720211)

gﬁgﬂ SINGHI] Mr. H, K. AGRAWAL (DIN : 00355116
Membarship Na. : 305161 Mt 5. SARBADHIKARY (DIN : 00941840} - Director-Finance
Place - Kolkata Me PRIYANKA SHARMA - Company Sscretary
Digte : The 14" gay of May, 2016, MrH. K. RAJBHAR - ChisfFinancial Officer

@



7} | THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

] CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

For the year anded For the year ended
2015-16 2014-15
®) i®) (T (T
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities :
Net profit befors Tak and Extraordinary itéms 2,42,31,108 169.16.270°
Adjustments for : |
Depreciation 53,21,378 5348313
Finanoe Cost 4525535 57.02,749
Infereist Received a (37,088) (1,69,338)
{Profi}iLoss on sale/discard of ficed asseisinet) - (3.832)
Unclaimed balances written biack (49,291) o (54 058)
Bad Debis Written off . 28,2%
(Profitylloss on sale of Investment (net) (37,40,770) (1,03.84.978)
Operating Profit before Working
Capital Changes 3050872 17898267
Adjustments for - :
Trads & Other Receivables ; (2.79,486) 5,86,386
Trade Payables. Provisions & Others 1,09,65,081 11,16,490
Inventtrias {1,08,73,874) 3&&]‘3.3&&‘
Cash generated fromi{used injoperations m m
Diriect taxes (paid)irefund (34,03,708} [63.67,848)
Net Cash fromifused in) operating activities : 7,65,58,784 1,58,14 603
B Cash Flow from Investing Activifies :

Purchiase of Fixed Assets/Capital workin Progress  (54,48,501) {60.47 348}
Sale of Fived Assels - 21,832
(PurchaseifSaie of Non Curen Invesimenisine] (22,589,230} (6141019}
Intersst Recelived 37,088 158885
Net Cash fromi{used in) Investing Activities (73,70.733) {1.19.97,670)

©



@ THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

== CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016 K
For the year ended For the year ended
2015-16 2014-15
1" (4] (%) {7
£. Cash Flow from Financing activities :
Proceads of fong lem bomowings {50,41,343) =
Repayments of fong term Dorrowings {9.00,000) {21.47,260)
 Proceeds from Working capital borrowings {net) (68,94,593) 66,158,998
Dividend including devidend tax paid {25,95,434) (25,63,152)
Binance Cost paid (45,01,426) (57.33.740)
Net cash from | {Used In) financing activities {1,97,28,796) {36,25,156)
Net increasal{decrease) in cash
aid-cash equivalent {A+B+C) (5.41,745) 581417
Cash and cash equivalents as at 01.04.2015° 28.57,343 21,66.925
Cash and cash equivalents 28 at 31.03.2018° 23.15,588 28.57,343
(5.41,745) 641417
* Cash and cash-equvalent consist of -
Cash & Cash Equivalents
As at As at
1.03.2016 31.02.2015
Gash, cheques, drafis in hiand efc. 13,328 840578
Balance & Fixed Deposits with Banks 23,02,269 20,16,765
Cash and Cash equivaient 23.15,548 28.57,343

The aforesaid statement is prepared on indirect method.
The figures of the previous year have been reclassified fo confarm to current year classification

As per our repart of aven date annexed For and on behaif of the Board of Directars
WM. DHIRENDRA KUMAR (DIN : 00153773)

: Mr. S.K.JALAN (DIN ; 00015836)
Foc it & 90 Mrs. DIVYA JALAN (DIN : D0016102) .
Chantersd Accountants ; ; Dirsctor
=i ko ATIHOE Mr. G. MOMEN {DIN ; 00402662)

WG RO 1 Mr. G. D. GUPTA (DIN : 00174114)
: M7, NAVEEN BANSAL (DIN : 00720211)
_ ;ﬁgﬂ SINGH) Mr. H. K. AGRAWAL {DIN - 00355116}

Mermbership No.: 305161 Mr. . SARBADHIKARY {DIN ;00841840) -  Director-Finance
Place . Kolkata Ms. PRIYANKA SHARMA, - Company Secretary
Cate : The 14" day of May, 2016, Mr. H, K. RAJBHAR - Chisf Financial Officer
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(@, THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2016
Significant Accounting Policies:

1)

.aj

b)

¢)

d)

o

g

Cenvention ; [

The financial staterarits have been preparsd in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards in India and in
sccordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, A summary of 1!!!;}011&11 acmuntmg pairc;laa
which have been applisd consistantly is set oul below, 5 *

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements: require judgmants, estimates and assumptions. to be madq #nat ﬂﬁaﬂ the
reported amount of asssts and liabilities including contingent liabilities on the date of the financial Statements and the
reported amaunt of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Différenice between actusl resubts aﬂ\cfesnmates
ara recognized in the perod in which 1he results are khown / materialized.

Basis of Accounting

* The Financial Statements afe prepared undar the Pﬁstonsai Cost Convention, on an acsnial basis and in axmﬁame-

with the generally accepted aCounting principles, (GAAP} in Indig aid the provisions of The Companies AtL EEHS
Fixed Assets

Fiied Assets are staled af cost -ﬂf acquisition inclusive of inward freight, duties, axes, mcudmaf axpanses reda:ted io

acquisition less accomisatad dewﬁcmm and impairmant loss, it any. ' ;

{:a:nl!al Wur& in-progress fs staled: at'cost of acguisition,

Depreciation

i) Depreciation onfangible fixed asm oftier than leasehold lantd and development is provided on ‘#F‘Hctﬁﬂ dawin
value method at the rate datermined besed Drl-ﬂ'PEUSET'{.II livesof respactive aasets as presnribedm ths%ch«ad“m
If of the Companias gt 2[]13 )

il Intangible Assels are bmrg amumzed aver & penod of three years
Impairment of Assets

A tanyibie fixed asset is impairsd if ils-carrying amount excesds the amount 1o be recoviered thrugh use of sale of the
asset. An impairment loss is e amount by which the carmying amount of an assel exceeds it recoverabla amount

. The recoserable amount is meﬁwmm thie higher of net satling price and value in HSE,

Reversal of impaiment losses remgr’rmd in‘prior yesrs i$ recorded when thers is an Wlf}ﬁ that thae mpmrmarr‘t

losses recognized for the assals rio longer exdsis or has decreased

Investments

il inveilments which gro readily reslizable and intended 1o be held for not mare than aie y&arfmrr thie date o' which:
such investments are made, are classified as current investmenis. All olher mmﬂm&m ana daaﬁﬁed S *aﬂg-ien‘n
invesments,

) . Oninitial recogriition, s investments are measured atcost mmmwmmmmmﬂm attrioutable
Fcquisition charges such as brokerage, fees & duties:

i) Long-Term Investmenis are stated at cost Provision for dimingtion is mad if the dectine in valug, in the opinion of
thie management, is-ather than lemparary.

wy  Curent lnvesimants Aie shatal at h:wr Dfmt-t IJT‘F’ﬁLI‘ mue‘

Inventories .

|nventories are valued at mst o net realizable vaiug: mhmhm&f is lower, Costis determined an. m@ﬁaﬂ avelage

basis. Cost comprises expandilure Incurred i the normal course of business in brirging such inventories 1o their

:1a¢a‘sm and condifion and includes aﬁpmmate marhaads Proision is made for utm!iete E‘ﬁﬁ slow mmrmg steicis,
“wharsyer necessany.

€



h)

1

et realizable value is thie estimated seling prices in the oidinary cotrse of business less estimated cost necessary to
iake ihe sale. Materials a0d ofhet items held for use in production of invenories are not writen down below fhe cost
ifhe finished products in wiich they will be incorporated are expectadto be sold at or above cost

Recognition of Income and Expenditure A
ftems of mcome and expandiiure ate racognised on scorual basis excepl insurance & othier ciaims which an ground of
prudence are actounted upon ceriainty of ultimate coliection. Dividend income is recognized a3 apd when the nght o
receive divigend is eslatlished.

Employee benefits

) Short Term Employee Emeﬁt's

The undiscoumed amount af shor term employes penefit expectad to be paidin exchange for {hie services
rentered by employee I8 recognized during the peried when e empioyee render service: This benafi includes
salary, wages, shor! ferm compensalory absences and bonus.

) Long Term Employes Benefits:-

Defined Contribution Scheme: - This benglifnciudes contribution to Provident Fund Schemes. The cortrinition
‘g recogrized during the petiod in which the employes randers services.

Defined Benefit Schenies: - For defined benefit scheme the cost of providing the beneft is tetermined using
thie: Projectedt Unit Cradit Method wilh actuanal yvaluation being cammied out al each balance sheet dale. Tha
rairermant berefit abligation recognized in the balance shest reprasants the value of defined benefit obligation
as reduced by the fair value of planned assels. Actual-gains and losses are recognized in fuil during the pariod
in which they cocur - s

Other Long Term Benefits: - Long ferm compensation absence is provided for.on the basis of an actuanal
valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the dats of Baiance Sheet.

Borrowing Costs

W;;g-ctms_ﬁhat are directly atiibutatia 1o e acquisition, construclion or production of qualifying assels are
being capitaiized as part of the cost of those assals and ather baraiwing costs are recognized as expense in e year
ir-which they are incurred.

Taxation : e )

Cutrentia is determined on the basis of the amount of lax payabie for the year underincome Tax Actand Agricuttural

Income Tax of the respective siate, Deferred Tax liabilities and assets &re recognized & substantively snacled tax

rates and is recognized on iming differences batween \axable income and accounting income that arginate in one
period and are capable of reversal in eneor mare subsequent period. Deferred 1ax sssels subect to congideration of

prisdence, are recognized and carried farward oy to the exient that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future
 taxable inzome will be avalladle against which such deferred tax assel can be realized.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets _
Provisions invalving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recagnized when there s apresent abligation
as a resulf of past events and it s probiable that thers wil be an outfiow of resources. Contingent Liabities, i materia!,
ars disclosed by way of notes on accounls. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed inthe finantial
statement.



@ THE SCOTTISH AS5AM (INDIA) LIMITED

1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016 |

As AL31.03.2016. ks AL3103.2015
T X
2.1: SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised -
20,00,000 Shares of T10/- each 2,00,00 © 200,086,000
isstied, Subscribed & Paid-up _
800,000 Equity Shares of T10/- each §0,00,000 80.00.000

a) There has been nochanga/movements in number of shares cutstanding at the beginning and &l the end of the reparting period.

b} The Company has only one tlass of issued shares ie. Equity Shares having par value of 210 per share. Each holder of

Ordinary Shares is entifled to one vote per share and equal right for dividend. The dividend proposed by the Board of Diractors
i subject tothe approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case o interim dividend. |n the
everit of liguidation; the ordinary shareholders are eligible to recaive the remaining assets of the Company after payment of &l

 preferential amounis, in proportion 1o their sharehiciding.

o

The Company does not have any H&dirrg Company/Ultimate Holding Company.

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

As at As at
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Ordinary Equity Shares of T10/- each fully paid up Mo of Shares ¥ Mo, of Shares %
Pradip Kummar Khattan fin the capaity of Trustee of Tea Trust) 120,008 15.00 120000 - 1500
Nirvan Comimencial Company Lid. 83,963 1087 86,563 1087
Shree Durga Agencies Lid. 83020 10.38 83,020 10.38
Maryada Advisory Services Pt. Ltd. 45,290 565 45280 5,66
SPEP investments Lid. 45 000 563 45,000 5563

g

gl

h}

Aggreqals number and ciass of shares allotied s fully paid Up purstant fo mfa-:lls} wilhinut pajant be'mg’-}eoé@?ad in cash
for the period of five years immediately preceding the dale as at which the Balance Shieet is prepared - Ni

No Equity Shares heve beenresenved for issue under oplions and contractsicommitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment
‘2 &t the Balante Sheet date. '

No shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of § years preceding the date & af which the Balance
Sheel s prepared

No securities converlible into EquityPreference shares issued by the Company during the year.
No calis are dnpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year.



@ THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

| NGTES 70 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EOR THE YEAR ENDED 31STMARCH, 2016 |
As At 31.03.2016 AsAt 03205

: : T 7
2.2: RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Capital Reserves
fis par the last Financial Statements 31.12,321 31232
General Reserve == i
As per the fast Financial Statements 18,64,20,038 18,17,00,000
Less - Adiesiment due 1o transiiional provision of Schedule |l - 270982
of thie Companies Act, 2013{net of deferred tax of T 1,21,187/-)
Add: Transferred from Surplus 50,00,000 8005000

RENCFERCS —1BBEA08

Surplus
A perine last Financial Statemanls 1.57.71,338 85,462,525
Add : Profit for the year 1,87,84,000 144,24, 247

: — 3,45,55,338 23386772
Less - Appropriations
Proposed Dividand 28,00,000 24,040,000
Corporate Dividend Tax 2,28,110 185434
General Resarve 50,00,000 500,000
Net Surplus — 2,65,01,028 1,57.71,338
Tola! Reserves and Surplus 22,10,68,587 2053.12697

Mon-Current Portion Current Maturities
As at s al As 3t As at

istMarch, 2016 3istMarch 2015 3sthlarch, 2016 HstMarch, 2015
T T ? I

2.3 : LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Sscured
Terim Loan from & Bank - &,00,000 9,00,000 18,00,000
Term Loan under Tea Board Special '

Pirpase Tea Fund Scheme - 37.94.083 - 347,260
Total Secured Botrowings . 4554,083 9,00,000 71.47.260
Amount disciosed under the head "Other
Current Liabilities” (Note 2.7) . -
Total - 48,94 083

9,00,000 2147260

Security
iy Tesm Loan fram the:Bank Is secured by equitable morgage of Heslaakah Tea Egtale and repayable by June'2016 (in one
instaliment).



THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

[ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016 ]

Long-term “'Short term
As at A5 at As at Agat ..
st Haﬁczlt, 2016 Qs Man:gl. 25 3stMarch, 2016 2% Hﬂ{?..ED‘I_ﬁ
T .

24 : PROVISIONS

Provision for Employee Benefits j i
Boriis - = 1,13,25,491 8349428
Gratuity . - 57,471,127 523,301
Other Provisions i
Provisions for Taxation{Net of advarice) 40,500 40,500 18,48,291 :
Praposed Dividend e . - 28,0000 24,0000
Corporate Dividend Tax® o 2,28,110 185434
40,500 40 500 22047010  ToARSABd

* |ri view of favourable order fram Hon'bie High Sourt at Kolkata in case of other Tea Company, ihe fsbiity for dividend distibution
tax hias been provided 1o the extent of 40% of the proposed dividend, ; i

2.5: SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Working Capital Borrowings {Secured)

From a Bank 30249386  3AG40GTS:
3,02,49,386 360400979

Security : s

1) Seciired by way of hypathecation of current asseis inciuding stock of finished gmcﬁs gresn leafs & export benefits related to
Heeleakah Tea Estate-and also by way of hypothecation of 2l movable plant & machinery & other movable fixed asseis, Al
present and futiire: The oan is further secured by way of daposit of titke deeds of Hesleakah Taa Estate.

Asat Asat 1
31.03.2016 31032015
:- T

2.6: TRADE PAYABLES
For Goods and Semvices

To'al outstanding dues of micro entérprisas and smail enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors oihier than micro enterprises \ i

and small enferprises. = _ 1,28,55.802 107,770,080 .
(ot Note 8o 2. 250157 delails of due 10 Moo, Bmall B Medih Erterprises) iE

e 1,29,55,802 U 07,70,090
2.7 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES :
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt{See Note 2.3) 9,00,000 I
interest scerued and dus 24,109 g
Unpaid and unclaimed dividends £,20,962 526477
{Amatnt ot due to be deposited as on Balance Sheet date) -
Statutery Dues 2353623 550,585
Advanees Received from Customers 244,962 2EIAT0
Employes Related Liability 36,20,803 7 2881720
Liability for Gapital Goods - 3,885,560
7734450 76,12.981

40 1
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@) THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

f NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016 |
_ Asal 31.03.0018 7 A0 032075
FaceValug  Mo.ofunits Amount No ofunis !mmné
k4 I ;
29 NOW-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
INVESTMENTS (A1 cost, unless otherwlss statsd)
Long term [Cther than Trade)
Fielly Paid-Up Shares!Sacurities
{¥nquated :

s 5% o Redsemabie Regisiersd Noripage
Debeniura Stock of T 1305 sachol

Wedkinds Hospitsl & Medical Rasasroh Gente LI 1% % 2000 i 2000
100 Equity Shares of § 16/ sach ol ABC Tea
“Warkers Welfare Service 1 10 1600 100 £100
e . PR
Units in MUTUAL FUNDS{Quoted) =
Bitta Siinite Dynamic Bond Fund " 679,328 1,30,00,000 540157 4,200, 00
Birta Gl beere s (63} W 234968 t20p0000°  Zdkeme 2000000
U1 Bed Fund Growth Fién Ragular 1 348475 121,060,000 LR 12100000
HOFG Batante Fund Giowh. . W 274250 1,50,00,000 R +1,56,00,000
ICHC! Prudaatial Incomie Cppartinties Grawt th B28.242 1,24,01,261 828248 13401251
IGFC Dynarmc Band Furd: ] 10 EFTRLT 1,20,00,000 5A4TEN 120 00N
Biréa Sunife ‘95 Fund - Growt: : it 1987 56,5803 1a97 54,5501
ICICI Prudantal bncaime PLan Grwm 0 z . 2agem 0,510,000 -
Rahancs Income: Fing Growth Pl 1o 2E1757 1.00.90,000 ZETIE 1.00,00.000
Kotk Band Fr : 1 BIRTH 20000000 61870 200.00000
Reafisncs Euity Disporkunities Grow 1w 82850 55,00,000 2,60 sspe0ai
‘Refianie Raguise Savngs Balznce Funn il 894541 1,60,00,600 B5 541 160, 00.000
HOFC Prudence Furd-Grossh : o THath 1,53,58.051 pLEh] 08
I Prutensal Balancs Adeniags Fund Ragular (3] 1 738,233 1,56,00,000 18,6429 2 00,40.000
Eila Sunifo Frontiea Eguti Fund (G} 10 45200 82.00,000 45200 83.00.080
DSP Blackios ingia T0G.E R, Fird Growih 10 13,806 20.00,000 e 250000
Frainks Ingia Prive plis Grows ; 1 17816 80,400,600 T8 §0,04.000
HIEC Top 200 Fung G 3l 21,088, B5,00.000 21088 85,060 000
HDFC Widzap Copantinies Fird Growth 19 87,83 25,060,000 B7am 25,00,000
I Prudential Tynaric Regillee Plan Growth 10 282 50,00.000 20382 50,0000
ICHCH Pridentel vekes Deseovery Fond Gebwih ] 67,356 &0,06,000 £7.356 H0,00,000
L' TEquily Fune rown i 117,282 75,00,000 147282 7E.00,000
LTt Equiy Fand Grows tu 0,85 75030000 7,953 750,50
L4 7 Pratence Fund Growsh i 482038 A0,60,000° < -
TATA Balarc Furd Grawih 1 56,528 ] = Ci
Totsl — TiEA 8305 TEE IR A0S
Lang term {Trada)Unguated)
G el & Aioys Leniied W 5,305,000 G000 HI000 E3:00,005
Less:Provisian far dimingGon in vaive of ivasiment : 93,00,000 9300000
Grand Tatal __ TR T
ook velue of Lingsaled investmests 2000 3000
Eick value of Cuoted wesiments TTHRRIS TONEIS
Warkat Value of Qugted irvesiments 34,39 43,008 TR A A



@=THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

| nares 10 ancw.smeuems FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016 ]
it As at Az at
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
T 4
2401 HEFEREETJ TAX ASSETS (NET)
Deferred Tax Assets
 Anising on account of : -
Carryover Capital Losses 833720 738876
Secticn 4380k noome-tax Act 24,879 ALB25
1ess - Deferred Tax Liabiities
- Afisinig on atobunt of -
Agcumulated Depeeciation 82248 444748
Eetﬂimd Tax Assels (Net) 7,716,251 A:04 TR
Note:

i} Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabi lities have been offset as they refale to same gaverning tax |aw.

«} Diaferrad tax on camyover capital losses has been carried forward on the carmmy of reversal of the same based on the

proecied mlab*.uy of future taxable income.

Longterm Slwr_t-'tenn e
As at As at As at Asar
31.03.2016 L0325 082016 ganE
= L 5 3 ¥
211 LOANS & ADVANCES
_ Security Deposits
Unsecured and considered goid i 28,61,575 27.38.750 -
Other Loans and Advanies
{Unsecured, Considered good unless a&hm menf.mn!
Advance Taxand TDS (Netof prtwssbaﬁsj 4449621 45.18.227 o -
 Advance agains: supply of Goods and: E-bewmes . 3 28,817 g.33.084
Frepaid Expanses - i, i 530,475 4,32 522
Loanibdvance fo Empioyees - - -3,85,000 6,800
* Balances with Government & Stalutory Autharities - . 208 . 13637
liicerne Tax Refund Receivable . . 4,768,570 478570
Rmeruaﬂa gider Tea Board SPTF Scheme - - - 382,844
Oiher Deposits and Advances - - 18,22.429 1351588
: 44 408,621 49.18.227 33.45,188 34.30,045
731,186 1650911 33,45,198 34 30,045
2.12: INVENTCRIES
(As valued and certified by the Management)
Finished Goods . 1,48,57.838 36,34 840
Stergs in Transt - 418231
Stores and Spares ' 1,17,44,049 t.13,74.843
_ ' 26101888 15727814
Details of Inventories : ; . : .
Tes {Finished Geods) ; 14957,839 3034 840
2.13: TRADE RECEIVABLES
{Unsecured and considered good)
Quistanding for 2 period exgeading uxmihs 41,515 BT
Dther Regelvables 9.87,209 877 70
fﬂ,!ﬂ,m 585461



THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

[ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2016 1
For the Year Ended For the Year Erded
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
T E
244 : CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Balances With Banks :
In Current Account 23,02,269 20,16,765
Cash oni hand 13,329 §.40,578
Other Bank Balances:
Unpatd Dividend Accaunt 6.20,862 520477
' ' 29,316,560 A3R3EN
745 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS e
Other Receivables 33378 25820
33,378 : BB
2.1§ : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS o2
Sale of Firiched Goods 28,40,08,860 30,34 20942
Other Operating Revenues
Subsidies - 18,24.586
‘28,40,98 860 30,52 45828
DETAILS OF SALE OF FINISHED GOODS :
Tea 28,40,98,850 334,20 942
28,40,98,860 30.34.20,042
247 : DTHER INCOME
|nterest Income on ofhers 37,088 169335
Profif 6n sate of Long-term investments {Nef) 37.00,053 7154982
Profit oh s2ie of Shor-term nvesiments: (Net) 40,717 o 330G BEG
Profiton saie of Fixed Assets {Net) ' - 3932
Unclaimet Balances Written Back 49,291 54,056
Miscelzneous Inooma 24,744 320,094
38,514,883 10812385

2,18 : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Graan Lagf 4.58,14,508 4 40,65,078

249 : (INCREASEJIDECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS
inventories at the beginining of the yeasr

Finished Goods (Tea) 39,34,840 : 87,89 284
Inventaries at the end of the year e
Finishied Goods {Tea) 1,19;5? 838 3534 840
; (1,10,22,989) 47 54 444
2.20 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE b )
Salarias & Wages 869,138,118 788084872
Managerial Remuneration £,12,000 545,000
Contribution to Provigent Fung and Others 73,868,726 B3 24 487
Contribution to Gratuity Fund 57,47,127 2008946
Stat Wellare Expenses _77,30,953 el 4303
. 10,83.84822 L4093 /05 -



@ THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

I  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015 |
For the Year Ended For he Year Ended
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
el ?
-2.21: FINANCE COST
Interest Expenses
T Bank & Cthirs
On Working Capital Loan . 31,66,574 3,76.504
On Term Loan 3,06,632 877,887
On Oithers 1932 121582
Other Borrowing Cost _
Other Financial Chiarges 4,50,397 575,865
: 4525535 5702740
2.22 : OTHER EXPENSES
Manufacturing Expenses
Stores, Spare Parts & Packing Matenials Consumed 4,97.76,884 B.66.10, 11
Prwer & Fiel 2,67,07,088 24288470
Repairs to Buiidings 948,764 26,70.555
Repairs to Machinery 131,624 81,038,569
Rlepairs fo Vehicies 30,10,580 Rk
Renairs 1o Other Assets 873,754 4,48 923
. v §,64,59,691 123328952
Selling and Administration Expenses
Fraight & Cartage 57,10,878 48,11,894
Insurance 415128 404 358
Cammission, Brokerage & Discountalc. 4547371 44 82305
Warehousing and other selling expenses 16,00,832 14,32740
Raies & Taxes {Duty & Cess) 39,90,574 37,83,140
Travelling and Conveyance 15,60,368 7.67.003
Auditors' Remunerstion-
Stanstory Audit Fees 1,50,000 150,000
Tax Audit Fess 30,000 30,000
“1sgue of Cerificates 1,00,000 75,000
Service Tax on above 40,350 31518
Legal & Professional Charges 16,19,633 941,685
Bad Debis | advances & Claims writien off 16,514 28,238
Directors! Fees _ 3,20,000 22000
Other Miscellananiis Expensas 4024961 3748223
' 2.42.26,610 118 56 809
11,06,86,301 14.41 85 861




@ THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

223 Notes (Continued)
5 Cantingent Liaoilites nat provided for in respect.of -

Particulars As at 31-3-2016 {2) As at 31-3-2015 (%)
Claim againsi the Company ot a{:kmvﬂedgad & dehis ; =
i, Surcharge on Elechicily levied by the Assam State Electricity 167,935 -« HBTS35

Board

i, Agricuttural Incore Taxdemand for the Assassment Year-
2008-10, Paig under prolest ﬂl{_ﬁ'{emus year ¥ 4, 74,1185

iit: income Tax demand for the Assassment Year 201-12 (Paid under :
protest T 1,671,850/ Previous year % 1,61 8507) 1.61.950 161850

v, income Tax demand for the Assessment fear 2012-13 {Faid under ' '
profest 3 ‘.}L‘Ifmtﬂf {Pravigiis year ¥ BEﬂuﬂﬂf]

. 474118

741,330 741,330

Ncrka In respest of abave, future cash fiws are determinable only on receipt of fudgements pending &t -.lm‘-u:uus ﬁ:&fmserauthmue's
which in the opinion of the Company is not tenable and there is no possibility of any futire cagh outflow in case of aboua

b) There are nooutstanding dues tosupplisraisenics providers covered wiider Micro, Small and Mediurm Enterinises Development
At 2008 (MSMED), The disclosures &8 required uncer the said Act

Particulars Amount (7)
3} Pﬁma;mﬁnunrdue'w_'suwﬂnﬁa MSMED NIL
5 Inlerast Bue & Guppler on above | Tl
o Apy payment mada'to Sugplier bevend appointed date(uls 16 of the Act) ML
dt  Interest dus anﬂ payable to Suppliers unider MSMED Sl Rl
gl Inlerest accrued and remaining unpaid a5 at 315t March, 2016 ML
fj  Imersstremaining due and payable under ssction 23 of the Act ' iyt “ WL

gl Tmma Receivables, Loans & Advances and Deposis mohude cartain overdue and unconfirmed bigances. Howsver, in
the opinian of the management. tnese curen! assels would, in the ordinary course of busingss. Tealize the 'I'E]L.B
stated in the accounts:

d) Employee Benefit

| The Company mak&s raanmtauharr towards Provident Find lo @ defined conirikition raﬂrﬁmem benstit @Jazr ﬁ;:r_
quahﬂrmg mplﬂyses Undsr this scheme the E:ampmy coniribufes a spearir ﬂemﬂma ot payrr:uﬂ ok
respett of eligible employes tothe refinemient Deneft schame tofund the benefits, During the year the Compary
has rewgngﬁ -4 ?385?2&' [P, - ¥ 83,24 487; for provident fund mntnh.:imn 2l )

i, Delined Benefit Plan: The Company makes annua! contribufion of graluity to ﬂelaante Lsfe instirance Go.Lid,
The scheme provides for alimp stim payment fo vested employses upon retirement. death white in smployment
ar on termination of emplayment of @ mount squivalent to 15 days saiary payatie for each completed yearal
service. Vesting oosurs upon:complation of 5§ years of conlinuous sevice,

fi. Thepresent vaiue of defined cbligation and related curent cost are measured using thee Frojecied Unit Credit
Method with aciuanat valuation being camsd out at each Balance Sheet date.

(48)



T:I_‘-IE-SCDT'I‘ISH. ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

DISCLOSURES AS PER ACCOUNTING STANDARD - 13

201546 | 201415
PARTICULARS Gratuity Plan | Gratuity Plan
%} T
A EIPEHSES RECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT
OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED .HST."MRCH 2016
| Current Service Cosl 239688 AR UES
it Interest Cost 17.70,195 17,10,930
i Expectett returm on Pian Assets (1720853 | (18.21,268)
v :MuaaF (Gain) i Losses = HEE= T 28.66,7497 (25:BBE)
© v Past Service Cost : : -
vi Expenses recognized in the Statement of F’rc-ﬁt Bloss STAT A 20,089,548
B uﬂiﬁssﬁm.fmamrfes RECOGNIZED IN : ' ' :
BALAHCE msus AT mr MAR-:;H 2016
i Bresent Value of the taefineﬁ Bensit Ctligation 28347755 | 2.21.92853
i Fair Valueof Plan Assets 2,3570,828.4 1 12,226,352
il Net gﬁssats}mam.uesmm*zed in Balance Sheat srarar| 52330
"C CHANGES IN THE PRESENT VALUE OF DEFINED BENEFIT :
: aBLI’G.ﬂT.'ﬂN D(a‘RfHG THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2016
i Present value of Defined Banafit Obfigation as &t 1stApril, 25 F 2T 82853 2.13,60,381
it Curent Service Cost 28 30 558 21485960
il Interest Cost 17,70,185 |- A7.10,530
iv PastService Cost: : . -
v Actugral (Gain) [ Losses 3ET1606 18:86,548)
vi Bensfits Paid {16.58.477) (44,40,578)
il Prasent valije of otiigation as at “3tat Margh, 2016, 28317758 | 22782853
O CHANGES IN FAiR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS DURING THE #’E.ﬁﬁ‘ ENDED 31‘ST HARGH 2016
| Earvaieof Plan Assets as at 1% Apsil, 2018 29260352 21447028
i retuen on Plan Assets 17,268,553 821,008
il Actuarial Gaini|Losses) 704850 | (958.264)
W Benefils paid (16,56 4771 (14:40.578)
v Coniributions 5230 4404000
vi Fair value of Plan Assels as al 31 March; 2016 2.35,70,628 772 58,357
Aﬂualt LR On ﬂ’emﬁsse'a J344n3] . 8.63,004
i Discount rales a3 2l 3t March, 2078 8.10% T.75%
il Expectad Refum on PianAssels ' 8.00%. B.00%
iii Expecied Salary Incregse rales 5% for first B0
Zyears & [
4% thereafier _
v Mortality rates \ LIC (2008.08) | LI (200608}
' .m Ulimate Table | Ulimate Table
"F WITHDRAWAL RATE : ST BT
- dependingon age | depending on &e
1 d AGE
OF FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS. =AN0% 1005
INSURED MANAGED FUNDS




THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes

The esfimates offulurg salany increases, considered In actizarial valuation, take dccount b inflation, seniority, promotion and
oifier relevant factors such as supply & demand in the employment marked,

The expactad rate of retuen on. Flan-Assets 45 determinad based.on ﬂ:g-purtiéﬁﬁ}-ﬂf.asaets.-.e:iﬁkig investments alongwith

L
the Strategic.changesin the portfolio and marke! scenario. The Plan Assets are diversified reasongbie to maximize the relum
within acoeplablerisk paramsierns,
o  The Company expects {0 contribute $30,00,000 fo its gratuity fund in 201647,
o Tha amiounis far the cuerent anpudl peried and previous four annual perods are as follows:
Particulars 2015-16 204445 | 201344 | 201243 | 201112
' ' E4] (4] (% ) 4]
Prasani vaius of defined ookgation 293,17.755 | 22192653 21360381 | 20717082 | 1,94.95.500
Fair Yalue of Plan Assals 23570,628 | 22289352 | 21447026 | 20555321 | 1.96.14.085
Excass of obigation over Plan Assets 57,471,127 52353011 (86845 | 121781 | (1.04.505)
&}  Segment Reporting:
Based on the guiding principles given in fhe Aczounting Standard oﬁ‘sa'g'rf'lent'Repurﬁhg{hsﬂ}"aﬁ'nptjﬁed by tha Company
Accaunting Standard Ruies 2006, the Company is 2 singla segment company engaged in the manutaciure of fea.
fi  Related Parly Disclosures:
List of Related Parties
ij  Parties where control exists:
Ganga Steel and Alloys Lid, - Associate.
ij - Key Managerial Personnel;
1} M S Sarbadhikary - Director {Finance)

Managerial Remuneration paid - 76,12,0000- (P.Y. 15,46,0001
20 MrH K Rabhar-CFO

Remuneration paid -73.92,3500- (PY. 212.424/7)

% Wrs. Privanka Sharma - Company Secretary.
Hemunaration paid - 32,54 503~
* For part of the year (joined on 30.03.2015)
* Eor part of the year (joiried on 08107.2015)
g)  Expenditura in forélgn cutrenty
2015-16 2014-15
Traveliing T6,93,172- Nil

. Theamoun nf.hmﬁﬁing cost capitalized during the yearis THIL



@ THE SCOTTISH ASSAM (INDIA) LIMITED

i Value of Raw materials and Spares Consumed

| Raw Materials Consumed Spares-Parts Consumed
201516 201415 2015-16 201415
Value(Z) %l Value(t)] %| Value() % | Value(Z) %
imparted = - - i e = 5 E
Indigenaus: 4,58,14.508 10000 24065078 10020 1858416 10000 | 47 10.843 19‘.1;&.'}_
Total 45814508 100.00; 4 40,59.078 mﬂ.ﬁ[}‘_ 1858116 100,00 4?.15‘,543 180,00
i Eamings Per Share:
Year entied Year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Orofit after Taxation as per siatement of Profit & Loss(T) 1,87,84,000 1.44,24.247
Waighted average number ofequity shares outstanding
at the year end 8,00,000 8,00,000
Basic and diluted earmings per share of face value of 110K 23.48 18,63
ki Previousyest ﬁ,gures:-hawe-baen regrouped of rearangad wherever considered necessary.
As per our report of even date annexed For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
: Mt DHIRENDRA KUMAR (DN - 00153773}
S SH.JALAN (DIN - 00015836) '
For SINGHLE CO. M. S o
; Mrs. DIVYA JALAN [DIN - DO016102) )
i"a”;"“’.' ;g?””ﬂm o Mz, G. MOMEN (DIN : 00402662) Dirgctor
T B SHRILING: = M. G. D, GUPTA (DIN : 00174114)
B Mr. NAVEEN BANSAL (DIN : 00720211)
gﬁ;ﬁﬁ SINGHI) Wr H-K. AGRAWAL (DIN; D0355116)
Mambership No. . 305161 Wr. S SARBADHIKARY (DIN : 00941840} -  Dimsclor-Finance
Place: Kolkata Ms. PRIYANKA SHARMA - Company Secretary
Daie : The 14* day of May, 2016, M. H. K. RAJBHAR Chiaf Fingncial Cificer



e [ =

I
|
|
I
I
|
|
|
I
|
I
I
I
|
!
|
x
I
I
|
|
I
I
!
|
|
I
!
!
I
I
I
I
|
|
|
I
!
I
I
|
|
!
|
I
!
[
|
I
I
I
I
I
I
[

FORM NO. MGT - 11

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2043 and rule 19{3)(c) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

The Scottish Assam (India) Limited
b Regd. Off : 1, Grooked Lane; Kolkata - 700068
_ CIN: LOT132WB197TPLCO31175
Wehsife : wiww.scottishassam.com  E-mall : scotishassam@gmail.com

Mame of the member {s) -
Rigstered addrass
E-matild :
Folio No / Client d
DPID:
We, baing the member {8} 6f . ..............Shares of the above namec compary. hereby appoint
1. Hama: Address :
E-mail 1D Signatura | ar faifing him
2 Mame Addrass | ——
E-mail 1D : Sigridiisne : or failing him
3. Name: — Address
E-mail 1D Sigrature

as mylour proxy 4o attend and vole (on a poll} for melus and on myloir behalf 8t he 35th Annual General Mesting of the Company,
yo be held on the Z2nd day of July, 2018 a1 14:30 a.m. at Gyan Manch, 11, Pretoria Straet, Kofiata - 700071 and at any adjpumiment
thereof in respect of such resclutions as are indicated below -

Businass

Ordinary Resolitlons For -Pgsinst
1. Reesive, Corsidar and adoph Audited Accourt and Rizport of Board of Direcloes and Audis

2 Deglararon of Bhadend for tra year 201516

5. Re-apponiment of Mrs. Divya Jalan wha reres by rotalion
4, Re-appointment of Audiiaes and fixing thelr remurerafion.

Special Business

& Aproval of Appoinkment of Mr. Samdesy Kumar Jslen, ¢ sqular Drecior

. Agproval of Agportiment of M. Alok Krisfing Aganwa as Indepandnt Director
7. Appeova of Appaintrmed of Mr. Sankar Kumar Sasy Sarhanhiary a5 Whole-fime Dirscior

AR | — 1L
At
Revenue
Stamp
{Sigrature of the shareholder)
Signature of Proxy holder(s)
Signiatuse of first proxy holder Signature of second proxy holder Signature of third proxy holder

Hote: This form of proxy in oxder to bie effective should be duly completad and depasited 2t the Registersd Office of the Company,
not less than 46 hours befure the commencement of the Meeting.
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FORM NO. MGT - 12

Polling Paper

[Pursuant to Section 109{5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 21(1){c) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Regd. Off: 1, Crooked Lane. Kolkata - 700069

@ The Scottish Assam (India) Limited

CIN: Lo 32WE97TPLCO31TS
“Website : www scotiishassamecom  E-mall : scolishassami@igmail.com:

BALLOT PAPER

S, No.| Particulars Details

1. |MName of the First Named
Shareholders {In block letters)

2. | Postal address

3. | Registered folio No.*Client ID No.
(*Applicable to investors helding
shares in dematerialized form)

4, | Class of Share

I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary | Special resolution enumerated below by recording my
assent or dissent to the said resolution in the following manner.

No. | Ordinary Business

No. of |gssant | dissent
shares held]  tothe form the
by me | resalotion | resclution

Oindinary Resalutions

1. | Receiv. Conmder and adost Audted Accort snd epbet of Board of Directors snd Audiors.

3| Declseation of Divriend ko Ihe yaar 2015-16

3| Re-anpoininent of Mre Divya Jalan whe relires By relason.

4 | Re-apperiment of Auditors and eng thai remunerebon,

Spects Busiiass

5 | Asproval of Aopoiniment of Mr. Sancesp Kumar Jaian, a5 tequtar Direcior

5. | Agproval of Agpoirsment of Mr. Alok Krizhna Aganwal & independert Diracier

7. | Appeoyg of Appoinimen o Wr Barka: Kumer Basu Sarbadhikary as Whole-fma Disectoe

Place:

Date

{Signature of the shareholder)



